
1 
 

Pwyllgor Cynllunio, Trwyddedu Tacsis a Hawliau 
Tramwy 

 
Man Cyfarfod 
Trwy Teams 

 

 
 

Neuadd Y Sir 
Llandrindod 

Powys 
LD1 5LG 

 
Dyddiad y Cyfarfod 
Dydd Iau, 20 Awst 2020 

 
Amser y Cyfarfod 
10.00 am 

 
I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch â 
Carol Johnson 
01597826206 
carol.johnson@powys.gov.uk 

 Dyddiad Cyhoeddi 
 

 

Mae croeso i’r rhai sy’n cymryd rhan ddefnyddio’r Gymraeg. Os hoffech chi siarad 
Cymraeg yn y cyfarfod, gofynnwn i chi roi gwybod i ni erbyn hanner dydd ddau 
ddiwrnod cyn y cyfarfod 

 

AGENDA 

 
1.  YMDDIHEURIADAU  

 
Derbyn ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb. 
 
 

2.  COFNODION Y CYFARFOD BLAEOROL  

 
Awdurdodi’r Cadeirydd i lofnodi cofnodion cyfarfod blaenorol y Pwyllgor a gynhaliwyd 
ar 27 Gorffennaf 2020 fel cofnod cywir.  
(Tudalennau 1 - 6) 
 

Cynllunio 
 

 

3.  DATGANIADAU O DDIDDORDEB  

 
(a) Derbyn unrhyw ddatganiadau o ddiddordeb gan aelodau mewn perthynas ag 
eitemau sydd i'w hystyried ar yr agenda.   
(b)  Derbyn ceisiadau gan aelodau i gofnodi eu haelodaeth ar gynghorau tref neu 
gymuned lle cafwyd trafodaeth ar faterion sydd i'w trafod gan y Pwyllgor hwn.   
(c)  Derbyn datganiadau gan Aelodau'r Pwyllgor y byddant yn gweithredu fel 
'Cynrychiolydd Lleol' mewn perthynas â chais unigol sy'n cael ei ystyried gan y 
Pwyllgor.   

Pecyn Dogfennau Cyhoeddus



(d)  Nodi manylion aelodau'r Cyngor Sir (sydd ddim yn aelodau'r Pwyllgor) a fydd yn 
gweithredu fel 'Cynrychiolydd Lleol' o ran cais unigol sy'n cael ei ystyried gan y 
Pwyllgor. 
 
 

4.  CEISIADAU CYNLLUNIO I'W HYSTYRIED GAN Y PWYLLGOR.  

 
Ystyried adroddiadau’r Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd a gwneud 
unrhyw benderfyniadau angenrheidiol ar hynny.  
 
(Tudalennau 7 - 8) 
 

4.1.  Diweddariadau 

 Bydd unrhyw ddiweddariadau yn cael eu hychwanegu i’r Agenda, fel 
Pecyn Atodol, lle bynnag bo’n bosibl, cyn y cyfarfod.  
(I Ddilyn) 
 
 

4.2.  19/1475/FUL Tyn Yr Wtra, Llanwyddelan, Felinnewydd, Y 
Drenewydd, Powys SY16 3BT 

 (Tudalennau 9 - 50) 
 
 

4.3.  20/0720/FUL Plot wrth ymyl Gerallt, Rhos Y Brithdir, Llanfyllin SY22 
5HD 

 (Tudalennau 51 - 70) 
 
 

5.  PENDERFYNIADAU'R PENNAETH EIDDO, CYNLLUNIO A GWARCHOD Y 
CYHOEDD AR GEISIADAU DIRPRWYEDIG  

 
Derbyn rhestr o benderfyniadau a wnaed gan y Pennaeht Eiddo, Cynllunio a 
Gwarchod y Cyhoedd o dan bwerau dirprwyedig, er gwybodaeth. 
(Tudalennau 71 - 88) 
 

Tacsis a thrwyddedau eraill 
 

 

6.  COFNODION IS-BWYLLGORAU TRWYDDEDAU TACSIS  

 
Awdurdodi’r Cadeirydd yn cadeirio’r Is-Bwyllgor Trwyddedu Tacsis i lofnodi 
cofnodion fel cofnod cywir:  26 Mehefin 2020.  
(Tudalennau 89 - 90) 
 
 
 



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Monday, 27 July 2020 
 

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE PLANNING, TAXI LICENSING & RIGHTS OF 
WAY COMMITTEE HELD AT BY TEAMS ON MONDAY, 27 JULY 2020 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor K Lewis (Chair) 
 
County Councillors E M Jones, L V Corfield, L George, D R Jones, G Jones, 
M J Jones, H Lewis, I McIntosh, D R Price, G Pugh, D Selby, K S Silk, E Vaughan, 
G I S Williams, D H Williams and R Williams 
 

1.  APOLOGIES  

 
Apologies for absence were received from County Councillor J Williams. 

 

2.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The Chair was authorised to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the meeting 
held on 2 July 2020. 

 

Planning 
 

 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a) County Councillor M J Jones declared a personal interest in application 
20/0738/FUL as he was appointed by the Council to the Brecon Beacons 
National Park Authority [BBNPA], which was considering the application the next 
day. 
  
County Councillor H Williams asked that it be noted that he was previously a 
member of the Nant Helen Liaison Committee and that his membership ceased 
2½ years ago. 
 
(b) The Committee noted that no Member requested that a record be made of 
their membership of a Community Council where discussion had taken place of 
matters for the consideration of this Committee. 
 
(c) The Committee noted that no Member (who is a member of the 
Committee) would be acting as ‘local representative’ in respect of any application 
on the agenda. 
 
(d) The Committee noted that County Councillor D Thomas (who is not a 
member of the Committee) would be speaking as the ‘local representative’ in 
respect of any application on the agenda. 

 

4.  PLANNING APPLICATIONS FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE COMMITTEE  

 
The Committee considered the report of the Head of Property, Planning and 
Public Protection (copies filed with the signed minutes). 

 
4.1 Updates 

 

Tudalen 1

2



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Monday, 27 July 2020 
 

The Members confirmed that they had received and had time to read the update 
circulated on 24 July, 2020. 
 

4.2 20/0738/FUL Land at and Surrounding Nant Helen Open Cast Coal 
Site, Powys and Onllwyn Distribution Centre, Neath Port Talbot 

 
Grid Ref:   283213 211223 
 
Valid Date:   15/05/20 
 
Community Council: Tawe-Uchaf Community Council 
 
Applicant: Mr Rob Thompson, Celtic Energy Ltd, 9 Beddau Way, 

Castlegate Business Park, Caerphilly, CF83 2AX 
 
Location: Land at and surrounding Nant Helen Open Cast Coal 

Site, Powys and Onllwyn Distribution Centre, Neath 
Port Talbot 

 
Proposal: Construction of complementary restoration earthworks 

to create 2 looped landform platforms (part in cutting 
and part on embankment) with associated drainage 
infrastructure and areas of landscaping and habitat 
creation to create a flexible and adaptable area of 
land that could be used for a variety of uses including 
agriculture, nature conservation, leisure, tourism and 
industrial, research and development/business uses 
(potentially including a proposed rail testing, research 
and development and storage facility). (Cross-
boundary application, see Neath Port Talbot CC 
Application ref. P2020/0362) 

 
Application Type:  Full 
 
The Planning Officer reminded the Committee that the application under 
consideration was to create a flexible and adaptable area of land that could be 
used for a variety of uses.  Any potential future uses of the site will be subject to 
separate planning applications and this application proposes restoration to 
agriculture, nature conservation and amenity uses.  The current application is 
considering whether the landform is appropriate in its own right, but Members 
can attach some weight to its ability to facilitate potential future uses without 
prejudicing any decisions on any future applications. 
  
County Councillor D Thomas spoke as a local representative and also spoke on 
behalf of County Councillor S Williams. 
Councillor S Davies, Chair, Tawe Uchaf Community Council spoke on behalf of 
the Community Council. 
Mrs S Pyart spoke against the application. 
Mr D Barry, Arup, spoke as the Agent on behalf of the applicant. 
 
The Planning Officer advised that if the Committee was minded to approve the 
application the conditions were those detailed in the report and additional 
conditions in the update report.  The application was subject to an EIA. 

Tudalen 2



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Monday, 27 July 2020 
 

 
Comment was made that it was disappointing that the Committee had not made 
a site visit.  Although the drone footage was useful it did not provide the same 
impact as being on site to assess the feel and visual impact of the proposal. 
 
In response to questions regarding the embankments the Planning Officer 
advised that it is likely that intrusive ground investigations would be required to 
establish the current ground conditions.  Any soft ground would need to be 
removed and replaced with new material that can support the embankment.  The 
slopes would also likely to be benched with new material placed on these and 
compacted so that new material would sit on flat areas to reduce the impact of 
gravity.  The Planning Officer referred to the Update report in which it was noted 
that the Land Drainage Officer highlighted the risks of such proposals.  However, 
officers were content with the proposed design, but conditions were 
recommended to ensure that the exact details were provided to the Planning 
Authority for consideration.  The Officer confirmed that the concerns of the local 
community and Community Council were recognised and the condition requiring 
the detailed embankment design acknowledged those fears.  An application to 
discharge the condition would involve consultation with the community and the 
Community Council.   
 
The Senior Land Drainage Officer in response to questions regarding land 
drainage advised that information about culverts, attenuation ponds etc were 
contained within the submitted drainage strategy.  Ongoing maintenance was 
outside planning and was part of SAB.  A maintenance plan would need to be 
submitted and approved by the Planning Authority but, the landowner would 
need to maintain all drainage systems in line with the approved plans.  
 
The Professional Lead Development Management indicated that the concerns 
raised by the BBNPA and Natural Resources Wales had been addressed by the 
photomontages provided by the applicant.  In response to questions regarding a 
site visit the Professional Lead Development Management advised that the 
Authority was working within the Welsh Government guidelines and rules.  The 
Welsh Government is encouraging Authorities to make decisions rather than 
deferring applications.  It had advised that site visits should be a last resort and 
technology should be used, where possible.  As a result, Development 
Management had utilised photo montages and also made a drone video of the 
site, to inform the Committee’s consideration of the application. 
 
A question was raised regarding the effect of climate change and whether future 
climate change over a 30 or 40 year period had been assessed.  The Planning 
Officer advised that a 40% allowance had been made to take into account 
climate change and the Senior Land Drainage Officer confirmed this. In respect 
of the geotechnical design, the Committee was advised that the Authority would 
need to engage an expert in geotechnical design to review the detailed plans 
submitted by the applicant and provide advice to the Authority.  
 
In response to questions regarding the attenuation ponds, the Senior Land 
Drainage Officer advised that detailed designs, including the lining to be used, 
would be provided as required under the conditions.  The Planning Officer stated 
that if the submitted detailed designs were not considered to be appropriate the 
Planning Authority would not approve the discharge of the conditions.  The 
Planning Officer advised that material would be taken from the overburden 

Tudalen 3



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Monday, 27 July 2020 
 

mound to restore the surface mine site and no earth would be brought from other 
locations.  In respect of the vehicle movements the Planning Officer advised that 
the 300 – 600 estimated vehicle movements per day related to movements within 
the site and there would be no additional vehicle movements onto the highway 
system.  
 
It was noted that the proposed embankments were to the south of Caehopkin 
and Brooklands Terrace and concerns were raised that the height of the 
embankments would have an impact on the sunlight levels in these two areas, 
especially in the winter.  The Planning Officer advised that the proposed 
embankments would not impact on the current skyline and therefore there would 
be no additional loss of light.   
 
Comment was made that the application had been processed quickly.  The 
Professional Lead Development Management advised that there had been 
ongoing discussions with the applicant which had meant that the documentation 
submitted was of a quality which meant the application was at a stage for 
consideration.  He also advised that the statutory consultation had been 
undertaken and therefore no one had been denied the opportunity to comment 
on the application.  
 
The Professional Lead Development Management advised that if the application 
was approved with the recommended conditions the applicant would need to 
submit further detailed information to the Planning Authority for its consideration.  
The applicant would have to apply for the discharge of specific conditions.  The 
Committee noted that at this point there would be further consultation with the 
local community and Community Council.  The local member could call-in such 
applications or the Professional Lead Development Management could require 
the application to be considered by Committee.  
 
The Senior Land Drainage Officer in response to questions advised that the SAB 
places a maintenance responsibility on the applicant or any future owner.  The 
landowner would need to undertake regular inspections of the attenuation ponds 
etc and could at any time be asked to demonstrate that they comply with any 
agreed maintenance regime.  The Planning Officer also advised that the land 
owner and developer would be responsible for the maintenance of the entire site 
and as part of the conditions would be expected to sign up to a 25 year 
ecological management and mitigation plan and a 20 year landscaping plan, as 
well as the SAB approval in respect of the drainage regime.  The restoration of 
the mine site was also subject to a 10 year aftercare scheme, to which the 
current or any future landowner would need to adhere.  
 
The Planning Officer confirmed that when detailed geotechnical design, drainage 
plans, landscaping plans and contaminated land plans are submitted, as required 
by the proposed conditions, planning applications will need to be submitted for 
the conditions to be discharged.  For each of these the local community and 
Community Council would be consulted and the Planning Authority would seek 
expert advice on the safety issues relating to the plans.  There would be a further 
opportunity for the local councillors to call-in the applications.      
 
It was moved and duly seconded to approve the application as recommended by 
the officer as detailed in the main report and the additional conditions set out in 
the update report and subject to the additional assurances that any application to 

Tudalen 4



Planning, Taxi Licensing & Rights of Way Committee Monday, 27 July 2020 
 

discharge conditions would be considered by the Committee, if the local 
members were to call-in the applications. 
 

RESOLVED: Reason for decision: 

that the application be granted 
consent, subject to the 
conditions set out in the main 
report and the additional 
conditions set out in the update 
report which is filed with the 
signed minutes and subject to the 
additional assurances that any 
application to discharge 
conditions would be considered 
by the Committee, if the local 
members were to call-in the 
applications. 
 

As officer’s recommendation as 
set out in the main report and 
additional conditions set out in 
the update report which is filed 
with the signed minutes. 

 
 

5.  DECISIONS OF THE HEAD OF PROPERTY, PLANNING AND PUBLIC 
PROTECTION ON DELEGATED APPLICATIONS  

 
The Committee received for information a list of decisions made by the Head of 
Property, Planning and Public Protection during the period between 24 June 
2020 and 17 July 2020. 

 
 

6.  APPEAL DECISION  

 
The Committee received a copy of the Planning Inspectorate’s letter regarding 
the appeal in respect of application P/2018/0528 - Oakcroft, Pentre, 
Churchstoke, Montgomery SY15 6ST.  The Committee noted that the Inspector 
had dismissed the appeal. 
 
 
 

 
 
 

County Councillor K Lewis (Chair) 

Tudalen 5



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee 
 20th August 2020 

 
For the purpose of the Government (Access to Information) Act 1985, the 

background papers relating to each individual planning application constitute all the 
correspondence on the file as numbered in the left-hand column. 

 
Applications for consideration by Committee: 

 
Application No:                                     Nature of Development: 
Community:                                          Location of Development: 
O.S. Grid Reference:                            Applicant: 
Date Received:                                     Recommendation of Head of Planning: 
 
 

19/1475/FUL 
 
Dwyriw Community  
 
 
E: 308557 N: 301310 
 
 
12.09.2019 
 
 

Full: Erection of free-range egg production 
unit, including silos, creation of vehicular 
access and associated works (part 
retrospective)  
 
Tyn Yr Wtra, Llanwyddelan, New Mills, 
Newtown, Powys SY16 3BT 
 
Mr & Mrs Jarman 
 
Recommendation: 
Conditional Consent  
 

20/0720/FUL 
 
Llanrhaeadr-Ym-Mochnant 
Community 
 
E: 313374: N:322965 
 
 
02.06.2020 

Full : Erection of dwelling house, 
installation of septic tank, of vehicular 
access and all associated works.  
 
Plot adjoining Gerallt, Rhos Y Brithdir, 
Llanfyllin SY22 5HD 
 
Mr Nathan Prodger 
  
 
Recommendation: 
 
Refuse 
 
 
 

 

Tudalen 7

4



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



 

 

Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

19/1475/FUL 
 

Grid Ref: E: 308557 

N: 301310 

Community 
Council: 

 Dwyriw Community Valid Date: 12.09.2019 

 
Applicant: Mr & Mrs Jerman 
 
Location: Tyn Yr Wtra, Llanwyddelan, New Mills, Newtown, Powys SY16 3BT 

 
Proposal: Erection of a free-range egg production unit including silos, creation of vehicular 
access, and associated works (part retrospective) 
 
Application Type: Full Application 
 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
In accordance with the Planning Protocol, Members are advised the Local Member has 
requested that this application be determined the Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of 
Way Committee.  
 
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
Community Council 1st Oct 2019 

Dwyriw Community Council would like the following points that have been raised by the 

local community to be taken into consideration: 

1. Visual impact: Residents are concerned about the height of the building, believing it to 

be higher than that proposed in the original planning application. The original description 

had been of a low-lying building, integrating well within the landscape.   This is noted 

within the Design and Access statement on 7 occasions and is criticised by members of 

the public as not being an accurate statement.   It is noted that the development is visible 

from a number of roads within the community due to its high position on the landscape. It 

is felt there is now a need for more native tree planting in order to reduce the visual 

impact. 

Residents are also concerned about the light that might come from the packing area early 

Tudalen 9

4.2



 

 

in the morning.   

2. Water course - There is a stream running alongside the access road with water that will 

end up in the river.  This stream does not appear on the maps as a water course but has 

been confirmed by NRW.  It is requested that the source of this water supply be identified 

to ensure it is not from within the ranging area in order that no water contamination 

occurs. 

3. Manure spreading - There is concern about the manure spreading proposals as 

everything on the plan already has manure spread on it from the applicant's current 

livestock.  

4. Well water - one member of the public is still concerned about their household well 

water and is questioning whether the buffer zone will be adequate to protect their water 

quality. 

5. Highways - Local residents have expressed concerns about the incomplete work on 

the visibility splay and the need to comply with planning conditions to ensure road safety. 

6. Cumulative impact - This is also a concern as residents have concluded that there are 

739,599 birds within a 5 mile radius of the development.  This includes units already in 

operation, awaiting development and in planning.  This is a material condition. 

7. Employment - this matter was also raised as the creation of jobs was stated in the 

application, however the Agent confirmed that these will be absorbed by the applicant's 

family and no new jobs will be created. 

8. Tourism - there is 5* caravan park overlooking the development.   The Agent stated 

that the park owner had not expressed concerns however it is noted that the actual park 

homeowners have not been notified.   Concerns are expressed regarding the impact this 

could have on the local economy, restaurants and shops. 

Overall the residents are unhappy and concerned that the conditions set in the original 

planning application have not been adhered to. 

 

 

Wales & West Utilities - Plant Protection 

Team 

16th Sep 2019 

According to our mains records Wales & West Utilities has no apparatus in the area of 

your enquiry. However Gas pipes owned by other GT's and also privately owned may be 

present in this area. Information with regard to such pipes should be obtained from the 

Tudalen 10



 

 

owners. Safe digging practices, in accordance with HS(G)47, must be used to verify and 

establish the actual position of mains, pipes, services and other apparatus on site before 

any mechanical plant is used. It is your responsibility to ensure that this information is 

provided to all persons (either direct labour or contractors) working for you on or near gas 

apparatus. 

 

Ward Councillor  

I wish to call planning application 19/1475/FUL into the planning committee due to:   

 

Landscape and visual impact - this is considerable and in particular from long distant views to the 

east of the site. The development is placed on top of  a man made hill ! There needs to be far 

greater native tree planting on the eastern side using native species of a considerable size.  

Visual impact is significant with significant detrimental harm representing industrialisation of the 

open countryside.  

 

I see the application form indicates the site area as 2.45 hectares however this does not include 

the bird ranging area. Whilst I accept the bird ranging area is strictly not  a change of use it is to 

be used in connection to the proposal which is a much more intensive form of agricultural use, 

there are nitrate impacts to consider and I also note this area adjoins a water course. Why is this 

 area not part of the application site as outlined in red? At end of the day the proposal is for  a 

'free range egg laying unit' where the chickens are encouraged to roam outside, this amount of 

birds will have significant impacts in relation to their droppings and nitrates impacts. - a much 

more intensive use.   

 

Cummulative effect –  please see below a table detailing the various units within a 5 mile radius of 

the development.   I kindly request that NRW compile an analysis of the nitrogen impact this will 

have on the immediate community.  

 

Tudalen 11



 

 

 
Finally, the planning history and public concerns expressed by local residents which are as 
detailed above. 

ADDRESS CHICKEN REARING/EGG 
PRODUCTION  

NUMBER OF 
BIRDS 

Rhiewbanc, Bwlch Y Ffridd Egg Production  32000 

Cwm, Bwlch Y Ffridd Egg Production  
Egg Production (approved) 

32000 
32000 

Belan, Bettws Cedewain  Egg Production  32000 

Henfaes, Bettws Cedewain  Chicken Rearing  36000 

Crugnant, Adfa Egg Production  16000 

Llawnt Uchaf, New Mills Egg Production (Pending) 6000 

Upper Fachwen, Tregynon  Egg Production  12000 

Caecappin, Tregynon  Egg Production  32000 

Coed Y Deri, Tregynon  Egg Production  32000 

Dolmelinau, Tregynon  Chicken Rearing  39999 

Red House, Tregynon Chicken Rearing (Pending) 76000 

Nant Y Gwylt, Cefn Coch  Egg Production  12000 

Tynwrtra, Llanwyddelan  Egg Production  (under construction) 32000 

Neuadd Uchaf, Llanfair  Egg Production  64000 

Rhiwhiriaeth, Llanfair  Egg Production  
Egg Production (approved) 

16000 
16000 

Rhallt Uchaf, Llanfair Egg Production  32000 

Peniarth, Llanfair  Chicken Rearing  36600 

Plasiolyn, Llanfair  Chicken Rearing  37000 

Rhosfawr, Llanfair  Chicken Rearing  38000 

Crossfarm, Llanfair  Egg Production  (Pending) 32000 

Brynrhug, Llanfair  Egg Production  32000 

Plasdwpa, Berriew Chicken Rearing  14000 

  739599 

 

Highways 30th Oct 2019 

The access as conditioned on the original application (Condition 7), states that the access 

centre line shall be at right angles to the adjoining highway for a distance of no less than 

20m. This is a standard condition applied to the majority of applications and is also used 

by the Planning Inspectorate. Drawing number GD-GHJ/02 shows the access centreline 

being at right angles for approximately 13m prior to turning and reducing in width. My 

concern is that this is insufficient to allow two HGV's to be clear of the adjoining highway 

and not cause detriment to highway safety. 

The drawing fails to detail how SW will be dealt with, so as to prevent the same from 

discharging onto the highway. 

The gradient of the access, as per condition 6, should be 1:15 for the first 20m - I 

Tudalen 12



 

 

appreciate that the access is retrospective, but no detail as to the gradient after the 

indicated 15m has been submitted for consideration. 

The access radii was conditioned as 10.5m, however, the submitted drawing is closer to 

an 8m radii. 

Should a revised access drawing be submitted, it should be suitably scaled such as 

1:500. 

 

Hafren Dyfrdwy 16th Sep 2019 

As the proposal has minimal impact on the public sewerage system I can advise we have 

no objections to the proposals and do not require a drainage condition to be applied. 

 

Environmental Protection  

Correspondence received 17th October 2019-  

I have no objection to the application.  
 

Correspondence received 30th April 2020 –  

 

When I originally looked at the application I don’t recall any objections from neighbouring 

dwellings and there were no dwellings in close proximity to the proposed unit. Feed 

deliveries are sporadic and not a daily occurrence. Its adjacent to a working farm 

therefore neighbours would be accustomed to some early morning and late night 

disturbances. I don’t recollect having a complaints about collections/deliveries for many 

years therefore I don’t attach a collection/deliveries time limit restriction condition as a 

matter of course.  

 

I’ve looked at the site again this morning and the nearest dwelling is at a distance of 

about 260m.  

 

However, from experience I know that feed deliveries are noisy and can continue for 

45mins. The background noise in that area would be very low therefore at 5.20am it 

would be very noticeable and likely to be a Statutory Nuisance if it’s a regular occurrence. 

 

If the Cllr has received any noise complaints please ask him or the complainant to contact 

me and I will investigate the matter through our Statutory Noise Nuisance procedure.  

 

Tudalen 13



 

 

Correspondence received 5th May 2020 –  

I agree, there is potential for disturbance to neighbours therefore attaching a time condition would 

be of benefit and protect those nearby from noise at antisocial times.  

 

Correspondence received 28th May 2020 -  

 

I have now received a complaint about early morning deliveries and also spoken to the applicant 

who confirmed that this was occurring. This is due to the feed company. He will contact them to 

rearrange the delivery times.  

 

Could you please attach a deliveries a collection time condition on the application? 

 

Do you have standard hours for these units otherwise I would suggest 8am-8pm Monday to 

Friday, 8-1pm on a Saturday and no collection on Sundays or Bank Holidays. 

 

 

Built Heritage Officer 14th Nov 2019 

19/1475/FUL - Erection of a free-range egg production unit including silos, creation of 

vehicular access, and associated works (part retrospective) Tyn Yr Wtra Llanwyddelan 

New Mills Newtown Powys SY16 3BT 

Recommendation  No objection  

Background to Recommendation  

Designation  

Nearest listed building CADW ID 18192 The Old Rectory included on the statutory list on 

04/02/1997 

Policy Background 

The advice has been given with reference to relevant policies, guidance and legislation  

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 

Planning Policy Wales 10th edition 2018   

Conservation Principles published by Cadw  

TAN24 

Tudalen 14



 

 

Managing Change to Listed Buildings in Wales - Annexe to TAN24  

Setting of Historic Assets in Wales - Annexe to TAN24 

Heritage Impact Assessments - Annexe to TAN24 

Historic Environment Records 

Local Development Plan 

Strategic Policy SP7  

DM13 Design and Resources Local Development Plan Themes and Objectives; 

Theme 4 - Guardianship of natural, built and historic assets 

LDP Objective 13 - Landscape and the Historic Environment 

Comments  

I am mindful of the advice in Sections 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 

Conservation areas) Act 1990, which require authorities considering applications for 

planning permission or listed building consent for works which affect a listed building to 

have special regard to certain matters, including the desirability of preserving the setting 

of the building. The setting is often an essential part of a building's character especially if 

a park, garden or grounds have been laid out to complement its design or function. Also, 

the economic viability as well as the character of historic buildings may suffer and they 

can be robbed of much of their interest and of the contribution they make to townscape or 

the countryside if they become isolated from their surroundings, e.g. by new traffic routes, 

car parks, or other development." 

However, I would also refer to more recent guidance in paragraph 6.1.10  of Planning 

Policy Wales 10th edition 2018  which states, " For any development proposal affecting  a 

listed building or its setting, the primary material consideration is the statutory 

requirement to have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building, or its 

setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses." 

Section 6.1.9 of  PPW 10 advises that " Any decisions made through the planning system 

must fully consider the impact of the historic environment and on the significance and 

heritage values of individual historic assets and their contribution to the character of 

place"  

Section 6.1.7   of Planning Policy Wales 10th edition requires that  " it is important that the 

planning system looks to protect, conserve and enhance the significance of historic 

assets. This will include consideration of the setting of an historic asset which might 

Tudalen 15



 

 

extend beyond its curtilage. Any change that impacts on an historic asset should be 

managed in a sensitive and sustainable way" 

I note the proximity to Scheduled Monuments as Cadw are the consultee in respect of the 

setting of Scheduled Ancient Monuments, I shall defer consideration of this section to 

Cadw. For clarity my comments are in respect of the setting of listed buildings only. 

TAN24 addresses setting with some of the factors to consider and weigh in the 

assessment including  

o   the prominence of the historic asset 

o   the expected lifespan of the proposed development 

o   the extent of tree cover and its likely longevity 

o   non-visual factors affecting the setting of the historic asset 

Paragraph 1.26 identifies the other factors that may affect the setting of an historic asset 

to include inter-visibility with other historic or natural features, tranquillity, noise or other 

potentially polluting development though it may have little visual impact. Cadw have 

prepared guidance on the setting of historic assets that in an annexe to TAN24 with 

advice on how to assess the setting of historic assets .  Section 1 of the guidance on 

Setting of Historic Assets identifies that setting often extends beyond the property 

boundary of an historic asset and in to the surrounding landscape or townscape. The 

setting of a historic asset can include physical elements of its surroundings, for instance 

the setting of a listed farmhouse might be its physical agricultural surroundings, both built 

and landscape features such as buildings, boundaries  or fields.  

This section outlines the general principles that both assessors and decision makers 

should consider when assessing the impact of a proposed change or development on the 

setting of historic assets. There are four stages.   

Stage 1: Identify the historic assets that might be affected by a proposed change or 

development and their significance.   

Stage 2: Define and analyse the settings to understand how they contribute to the ways in 

which the historic assets are understood, appreciated and experienced.   

Stage 3: Evaluate the potential impact of a proposed change or development on those 

settings.  

 Stage 4: Consider options to mitigate the potential impact of a proposed change or 

development on those settings. 

Tudalen 16



 

 

The Old Rectory is sited to the south west of Tynyrwtre. The proposed egg laying unit will 

be sited to the south east of the farm complex. 

The Old Rectory is sited in a slightly elevated position above the  road that approached 

Llanwyddelan from the B4389 and is well screened with garden planting. The principal 

outlook of the property is  south east with the service rooms facing north-west towards the 

road.  

Tynyrwtre is set on lower land than The Old Rectory with many large farm buildings being 

visible from the public road. The proposed building is to the rear (south east) of the farm 

holding and as such not  readily visible from the front of Tynyrwtre. 

 

There is potential for the new building to be visible from the public road that leads from 

the B4389 towards Llanwyddelan when travelling from the bridge into the settlement. 

However the land slopes steeply to the north, and at the point when the current farm 

buildings to the rear of Tynyrwtre are visible, The Old Rectory is not.   Similarly when The 

Old Rectory is visible  from the public highway, the majority of the farm buildings at 

Tynyrwtre and the proposed building will not be readily visible. 

I note the recent application 2018/0466 for an egg laying unit on the site and that the 

current proposal is for a revision to the previously approved plans.  The current proposal 

is slightly longer than the previously approved plans, and as such it is considered that the 

impact on the listed building would be no greater than the previously approved plans.  

I have taken into account the guidance in section 16 and 66 of  The Planning (Listed 

Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Conservation Principles,  section 6.5.11 of 

PPW, TAN24 and its annexes, and can confirm that taking into account the distance and 

topography from the site of the proposed egg laying  unit that I have no objections to the 

proposal  in respect of the setting of the listed building 

 

 

Land Drainage 18th Sep 2019 

Planning Department: Could the following be added as an informative for the application.  

All: Having assessed the Planning Application Ref 19/1475/FUL, the SuDS Approval 

Body (SAB) deem that the construction area is greater than 100m2 and therefore this 

proposed development will require SAB approval prior to any construction works 

commencing onsite.  

Tudalen 17



 

 

Please contact the SAB Team on 01597 826000 or via email sab@powys.gov.uk 

For further information on the requirements of SAB and where relevant application 

forms/guidance can be accessed, please visit the following website 

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB 

 

Land Drainage 5th Nov 2019 

I note the drainage proposal but as this site is now covered by a new planning 

application, the drainage requirements would now need to meet Welsh Gov's National 

Standards and be approved by SAB. This would cover all the site, including the new 

build. 

Further detail is therefore required to demonstrate that not only the hydraulic standards 

can be met but also water quality, amenity & biodiversity. It should be noted that should 

the SAB identify that the current proposals are unacceptable and that changes are 

required then this could result in a need for amendments to any subsequent planning 

permission if granted, causing further delays and additional costs to the applicant. 

Correspondence received 13th July 2020 –  

Apologies for the delay. 

 

As you will be aware, the County Land Drainage/SAB team have been working with the 

Roger Parry & Partners (RP&P) to review the access drainage proposals, particularly 

since the surface water drainage for this development site now needs to comply with 

Welsh Government’s statutory standards for sustainable drainage systems. 

 

In relation to the revised Access drainage arrangements shown on drawing no. GD-

MZ213-04 “Drainage Plan (Access)” dated 13/05/2020 prepared by RP&P, the proposals 

put forward would be generally acceptable.  However, the detail design will need to be 

approved as part of a separate SAB submission for the whole application site. 

 

With regard to the building and associated hardstandings, the drainage arrangements are 

shown on drawing no. GD-GHJ/01 “Drainage Plan” dated 03/09/2019, prepared by 

RP&P, the design of which would have been pre-SAB era.  The concept is generally 

acceptable but as mentioned, the surface water drainage for both the access and 

building/hardstanding areas will now need to comply with Welsh Government’s national 

standards for SuDS, which has to not only consider the hydraulic requirements but also 

water quality, amenity and biodiversity.  Other than the proposed drainage drawing 

mentioned above, no further details have been submitted to show what has been installed 

Tudalen 18

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB


 

 

for the building / hardstanding arrangements. 

 

Additional drainage related works may well be required, specifically for the building and 

associated hardstanding areas, in order to bring these area up to the required national 

standards. 

 

Hope this is of assistance. 

 

 

 

Natural Resources Wales (North) DPAS 2nd Oct 2019 

Thank you for re-consulting Cyfoeth Naturiol Cymru / Natural Resources Wales with 

additional information about the above, which was received on 12/09/2019.  

We have significant concerns with the proposed development as submitted. We 

recommend that you should only grant planning permission if the scheme can meet the 

following requirement. We would object if the scheme does not meet this requirement.  

Requirement 1 - Amendment of Manure Management Plan to include Nitrogen figures for 

sheep  

Subject to the satisfaction of this requirement, we would request the following condition:  

Condition 1 - To prevent pollution to watercourses during the construction and operational 

phases of the proposal, the development shall be carried out in accordance with the:  

i i) Manure Management Plan (subject to the satisfaction of Requirement 1)  

ii ii) Drainage Plan (plan titled 'Location Plan', drawing no. GD-MZ213-01 dated 

21/01/2018 by Roger Parry & Partners)  

iii iii) Pollution Prevention Plan ('Method Statement Pollution Prevention', by Roger 

Parry & Partners).  

Manure Management Plan  

We have reviewed the manure management plan ('Manure Management Plan', Roger 

Parry & Partners) submitted in support of the proposal. 

The plan states that the manure will be spread on the land at the farm and calculates the 

quantity of manure which will be produced. The manure spreading plans include buffers 

Tudalen 19



 

 

to sensitive receptors. These plan also include a ranging plan with buffers to sensitive 

receptors.  

Requirement 1 - Amendment of Manure Management Plan to include Nitrogen figures for 

sheep  

We note from section 2.3 of the Design & Access Statement it states 'the farm business is 

currently a beef and sheep farm', however the sheep have not been accounted for in the 

nitrogen figures in the Manure Management Plan. The sheep and all other livestock must 

be included in the Nitrogen figures as Nitrogen loading all year round.  

Protected Sites and aerial emissions  

Intensive agricultural units have the potential to impact protected sites through aerial 

emissions (ammonia and nitrogen deposition). We have assessed the proposal using the 

thresholds introduced in April 2017. NRW assesses the air quality impact a unit may have 

on European sites and Sites of Special Scientific Interest (SSSIs) within a screening 

distance of 5km of the unit.  

Detailed aerial emissions modelling has been submitted ('A Report on the Modelling of 

the Dispersion and Deposition of Ammonia from the Proposed Free Range Egg Laying 

Chicken House at Tyn-Yr-Wtra, near Llanwyddelan in Powys' by AS Modelling & Data 

Ltd., 26th April 2018).  

The report states there are 2 SSSIs within 5km of the proposal, which are:  

o o Cors Llanllugan SSSI  

o o Gregynog SSSI.  

The background ammonia concentration around Pentre Penarth is 1.41_$lgNH3/m3, and 

the background nitrogen deposition is 28.70kgN/ha/yr to woodland and 19.04kgN/ha/yr 

for short vegetation. The report sources these figures from the Air Pollution Information 

System (APIS, February 2018).  

The ammonia critical levels and nitrogen critical loads used for the sites are considered 

correct.  

The report predicts the process contributions to ammonia concentration and nitrogen 

deposition are below the thresholds we apply in our assessment of potential impacts on 

protected sites. These predictions for the Gregynog SSSI are 0.3% for ammonia, and 

0.2% for nitrogen at the highest concentrations.  

Drainage Plan  

Tudalen 20



 

 

We have reviewed the drainage plan (plan titled 'Location Plan', drawing no. GD-MZ213-

01 dated 21/01/2018 by Roger Parry & Partners) submitted in support of the proposal.  

The plan shows the dirty water and clean water being drained separately. The dirty water 

will flow to a tank built to comply with the SSAFO Regulations, and the clean surface 

water will flow to a soakaway system. 

Provided the drainage system is built in accordance with this plan, it is unlikely the 

proposal will cause pollution to the wider environment.  

Pollution Prevention  

We have reviewed the pollution prevention plan ('Method Statement Pollution Prevention', 

by Roger Parry & Partners) submitted in support of this proposal.  

Provided the works on the site are undertaken in accordance with this plan, the proposal 

is unlikely to adversely impact the surrounding environment.  

Please do not hesitate to contact us if you require further information or clarification of 

any of the above.  

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters that are included on our 

consultation topics list (September 2018) which is published on our website:  

(https://cdn.naturalresources.wales/media/686847/dpas-consultation-topics-august-2018-

eng.pdf?mode=pad&rnd=131819256840000000). We have not considered potential 

effects on other matters and do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to 

affect other interests, including environmental interests of local importance.  

Advice for the Developer:  

Environmental Permitting Regulations  

The current advice relates to a proposed unit for 32,000 free range birds.  

Should the number of birds subsequently increase within the holding to over 40,000 birds 

an Environmental Permit under the Environmental Permitting Regulations 2016 would be 

required from Natural Resources Wales.  

The grant of planning permission does not permit activities that require consent, licence 

or permit under other legislation. It is the applicant's responsibility to ensure that all 

relevant authorisations are obtained prior to any works commencing on site.  

The written consent of NRW or registration for exemption by the developer will be 

required for any discharge (e.g. foul drainage to watercourse/ditch etc.) from the site and 

may also be required for certain discharges to land. All necessary NRW consents or 

Tudalen 21



 

 

exemptions will need to be obtained prior to works progressing on site.  

Advice on Poultry Units  

Advice on poultry units can be found in NRW's guidance document 'GN020 Assessing the 

impact of ammonia and nitrogen on designated sites from new and expanding intensive 

livestock units' and 'GN021 Poultry Units: planning permission and environmental 

assessment' available on our website: https://naturalresources.wales/guidance-and-

advice/business-sectors/farming/good-farming-practice/?lang=en  

Abstractions  

Applicants intending to supply new units from ground or surface waters are advised to 

check the abstraction limits and apply for a permit to abstract if required.  

https://naturalresources.wales/apply-for-a-permit/water-abstraction-licences-and-

impoundment-licences/?lang=en 

Discharges  

The written consent of NRW or registration for exemption by the developer will be 

required for any discharge from the site (e.g. foul drainage to a watercourse) and may 

also be required for certain categories of discharges to land. All necessary NRW 

consents, or exemptions must be obtained prior to works progressing on site.  

https://naturalresources.wales/apply-for-a-permit/water-discharges/discharges-to-surface-

water-and-groundwater/environmental-permitting-for-discharges-to-surface-water-and-

groundwater/?lang=en  

The applicant should be advised that, in addition to planning permission, it is their 

responsibility to ensure that they secure all other permits/consents relevant to their 

development. 

 

 

 

Natural Resources Wales (North) DPAS 14th Feb 2020 

We have significant concerns with the proposed development as submitted. We 

recommend you should only grant planning permission if you include the following 

documents within the condition identifying approved plans and documents on the decision 

notice: 

Tudalen 22



 

 

o Ranging Area Plan (plan titled 'Manure Management Maps', part of the revised Manure 

Spreading maps uploaded to your Authority's website on 12th February 2020) 

o Manure Management Plan (document titled 'Manure Management Plan' by Roger Parry 

& Partners, uploaded to the Local Authority website on 21 Oct 2019) 

o Drainage Plan (plan titled 'Location Plan', drawing no. GD-MZ213-01 dated 21/01/2018 

by Roger Parry & Partners) 

o Pollution Prevention Plan ('Method Statement Pollution Prevention', by Roger Parry & 

Partners). 

Ranging Area Plan 

We have reviewed the amended Ranging Area Plan (plan titled 'Manure Management 

Maps', part of the revised Manure Spreading maps uploaded to your Authority's website 

on 12th February 2020). 

The plan shows a 10m buffer being maintained to watercourses, and includes 50m 

buffers to wells, springs and boreholes. 

Ein cyf/Our ref: CAS-109003-X5R3 

Eich cyf/Your ref: 19/1475/FUL 

Welsh Government Building, Rhodfa Padarn, Llanbadarn Fawr, Aberystwyth, Ceredigion, 

SY23 3UR 

ebost/email: northplanning@cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk 

Ffôn/Phone: 03000 65 4680 

Powys County Hall, Spa Rd E, Llandrindod Wells, LD1 5LG 

www.naturalresourceswales.gov.uk 

www.cyfoethnaturiolcymru.gov.uk Page 2 of 2 

Provided the proposal operates in accordance with this plan, it would be unlikely to cause 

adverse effect on the surrounding environment. 

Other Matters 

Our comments above only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist, 

Development Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), which is 

published on our website. We have not considered potential effects on other matters and 

Tudalen 23



 

 

do not rule out the potential for the proposed development to affect other interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 

ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 

Please refer to our website for further details. 

If you have any queries on the above, please do not hesitate to contact us. 

 

 

CPAT 12th Sep 2019 

I can confirm that there are no archaeological implications for the proposed egg 

production unit development at this location. 

 

Cadw 2nd Oct 2019 

Thank you for your letter of 12 September 2019 inviting our comments on the information 

submitted for the above planning application.   

Advice 

Having carefully considered the information provided with this planning application, we 

have no objections to the impact of the proposed development on the scheduled 

monuments listed in our assessment of the application below. 

Our role 

Our statutory role in the planning process is to provide the local planning authority with an 

assessment concerned with the likely impact that the proposal will have on scheduled 

monuments, registered historic parks and gardens, registered historic landscapes where 

an Environmental Impact Assessment is required and development likely to have an 

impact on the outstanding universal value of a World Heritage Site.  We do not provide an 

assessment of the likely impact of the development on listed buildings or conservation 

areas, as these are matters for the local authority.  

It is for the local planning authority to weigh our assessment against all the other material 

considerations in determining whether to approve planning permission.  

National Policy   

Applications for planning permission are considered in light of the Welsh Government's 

Tudalen 24



 

 

land use planning policy and guidance contained in Planning Policy Wales (PPW), 

Technical Advice Notes and related guidance.   

PPW (planning-policy-wales-edition-10.pdf) explains that It is important that the planning 

system looks to protect, conserve and enhance the significance of historic assets. This 

will include consideration of the setting of an historic asset which might extend beyond its 

curtilage. Any change that impacts on an historic asset or its setting should be managed 

in a sensitive and sustainable way. 

The conservation of archaeological remains and their settings is a material consideration 

in determining a planning application, whether those remains are a scheduled monument 

or not. Where nationally important archaeological remains are likely to be affected by 

proposed development, there should be a presumption in favour of their physical 

protection in situ. It will only be in exceptional circumstances that planning permission will 

be granted if development would result in a direct adverse impact on a scheduled 

monument (or an archaeological site shown to be of national importance)  

Technical Advice Note 24: The Historic Environment elaborates by explaining that when 

considering development proposals that affect scheduled monuments or other nationally 

important archaeological remains, there should be a presumption in favour of their 

physical preservation in situ, i.e. a presumption against proposals which would involve 

significant alteration or cause damage, or would have a significant adverse impact 

causing harm within the setting of the remains. 

PPW also explains that local authorities should value, protect, conserve and enhance the 

special interests of  parks and gardens and their settings included on the register of 

historic parks and gardens in Wales and that the effect of a proposed development on a 

registered park or garden or its setting should be a material consideration in the 

determination of a planning application. 

Assessment  

Within 3km are nine scheduled monuments, of these the following six are not inter-visible 

due to the intervening topography: MG001 Caersws Roman Site, MG161 Roman 

Earthwork NE of Caersws (revealed by aerial photography), MG222 Caersws Roman 

Fort: Section of South Western Defences, MG242 Caersws Roman Fort and Vicus: 

section in southern part of vicus, MG243 Caersws Roman Fort and Vicus: section in SE 

part of vicus, MG244 Caersws Roman Fort: South-west corner defences.  

Three other scheduled monuments are potentially inter-visible. MG064 Gwyn Fynydd 

Camp comprising the remains of an earthwork/stone-built enclosure, the date which is 

unknown, but it is likely to be later prehistoric or medieval. This enclosure is well-

preserved, comprising a sub-circular settlement with a single bank and ditch, and 

Tudalen 25



 

 

counter-scarp bank existing on all but E sides.  The bank stands to a max height of c 

1.5m on outside and c 0.75m on inside.  Located on the south eastern side of a ridge c 

975m to the east of the proposed development, views in the direction of the proposal may 

just catch the upper parts of the intended buildings, though it is likely that hedgerows in 

the near ground of the monument would further reduce this possibility. Any potential 

damage to the setting of the monument is likely to be very slight.  

MG123 Wyle Cop Camp is an irregular hillslope enclosure, c.78m by 50m located on the 

south east end of the ridge of Alltwenog about 970m to the north northwest of the 

proposal. The enclosure site has broad views over the lower ground, which is likely to 

have been intentional. The addition of another modern building into the landscape as 

seen from the monument will diminish the sense of place marginally; the damage to the 

setting of the monument will be slight.  

MG324 Caersws Roman road comprises one of the surviving earthworks of the Roman 

road travelling west from the fort at Caersws it is visible as an earthwork agger, or raised 

embankment situated within enclosed and improved pasture. From the monument the 

proposal will be visible on a distant horizon 2.6km to the north east, any effect upon the 

monument's setting will be very slight. 

 

 

Natural Resources Wales (North) DPAS 11th Jun 2020 

Thank you for re-consulting Natural Resources Wales (NRW) about the above, which was 

received on 22/05/2020. 

We note the amended plans (GD-MZ213-05 and GD-MZ213-04) relate to the access and 

show amendments to the layout and drainage of the access track. No other element of 

the scheme appears to have been amended. We have no additional comment to make on 

the proposal and would refer you to our previous response dated 14/02/2020 (our 

reference CAS-109003-X5R3). In relation to our previous response we referenced the 

need to include the drainage plan (associated with the egg production unit) in the list of 

approved plans should permission be granted. It should be noted that the correct name 

and reference of this plan is 'Drainage Plan' GD-GHJ/01. 

Our comments only relate specifically to matters included on our checklist, Development 

Planning Advisory Service: Consultation Topics (September 2018), which is published on 

our website. We have not considered potential effects on other matters and do not rule 

out the potential for the proposed development to affect other interests. 

We advise the applicant that, in addition to planning permission, it is their responsibility to 

Tudalen 26



 

 

ensure they secure all other permits/consents/licences relevant to their development. 

Please refer to our website for further details. 

Highways 30th Jul 2020 

The development shall be carried out in accordance with drawing number GD-MZ213-05. 

Notwithstanding the submitted details on drawing number GD-MZ213-05 the Highway 

Authority wish the following conditions to be applied to any consent given. 

1. Within 10 days of the date of the Planning Consent the access shall be 

constructed so that there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at 

the centre of the access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining 

carriageway, to points 0.6 metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining 

carriageway and 59 metres distant in a westerly direction and 120m in an easterly 

direction measured from the centre of the access along the edge of the adjoining 

carriageway.  Nothing shall be planted, erected or allowed to grow on the area(s) of land 

so formed that would obstruct the visibility and the visibility shall be maintained free from 

obstruction for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

2. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new 

or relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the visibility 

splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in existence. 

3. Within 10 days of the date of the Planning Consent the area of the access to be 

used by vehicles is to be constructed to a minimum of 410mm depth, comprising a 

minimum of 250mm of sub-base material, 100mm of bituminous macadam base course 

material and 60mm of bituminous macadam binder course material and be finished in a 

40mm bituminous surface course material for a distance of 20 metres from the edge of 

the adjoining carriageway.  Any use of alternative materials is to be agreed in writing by 

the Local Planning Authority prior to the access being constructed. 

4. Within 10 days of the date of the Planning Consent, provision shall be made within 

the curtilage of the site for the parking of not less than two cars and two heavy goods 

vehicles together with a turning space such that all vehicles serving the site may both 

enter and leave the site in a forward gear. The parking and turning areas shall be retained 

for their designated use for as long as the development hereby permitted remains in 

existence.  

5. The gradient of the access shall be constructed so as not to exceed 1 in 15 for the 

first 20 metres measured from edge of the adjoining carriageway along the centre line of 

the access and shall be retained at this gradient for as long as the development remains 

in existence. 

Tudalen 27



 

 

6. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 

county highway. 

7. Any vehicular entrance gates installed within the application site shall be set back 

20 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway and shall be constructed so 

as to be incapable of opening towards the highway and shall be retained in this position 

and form of construction for as long as the dwelling/development hereby permitted 

remains in existence.  

8. Within 10 days of the date of the Planning Consent the existing means of access 

shown on drawing number GD-MZ213-05 shall be stopped up, in materials to be agreed 

in writing by the Local Planning Authority and this shall be retained for as long as the 

development is in existence. 

Representations 
 
At the time of writing this report 14 representations have been received by Development 
Management. The concerns expressed therein can be summarised as follows; 
 

 Retrospective application – development not undertaken in accordance with 
planning permission/ multiple breaches of condition; 

 Cumulative impact; 
 Landscape and visual impact; 
 Unacceptable odour impact; 
 Adverse impact on tourism assets; 
 Subsidence; 
 Environmental pollution; 
 Impact on designated sites. 

 
 
Planning History 
 

M/2007/1028 - Erection of an agricultural livestock shed. Approved 26/11/07. 
 
P/2008/0252 – Householder: Erection of a 2 story extension. Approved 01/04/08. 
 
P/2018/0175 - Full: Extension to existing general purpose agricultural building. 
Approved 21/03/16. 
 
P/2015/0627 - Full: Installation of a ground mounted solar pv array and associated 
metering cabinet. Approved 30/09/2015. 
 
P/2018/0466 - Full: Erection of an egg laying unit, creation of vehicular access and all 
associated works. Approved 18/10/2018. 
 
19/0167/DIS - Application to discharge planning condition no's 15,18, 22, 23, 24 and 25 

Tudalen 28



 

 

attached to planning permission P/2018/0466 (gateway closure; landscaping; ground 
and floor levels and access sections; hedgerow compensation plan; hedgerow 
protection plan; surface water drainage scheme). Approved 25/04/2019. 
 
19/2011/FUL - Erection of a manure store. Approved 11/05/2020. 
 
Principal Planning Constraints 
  

 

 
Principal Planning Policies 
 
 

PPW Planning Policy Wales 
(Edition 10, December 
2018) 

 National Policy 

 
TAN5 Nature Conservation and 

Planning 
 National Policy 

 
TAN6 Planning for Sustainable 

Rural Community 
 National Policy 

 
TAN11 Noise  National Policy 
 
TAN12 Design  National Policy 
 
TAN15 Development and Flood 

Risk 
 National Policy 

 
TAN18 Transport  National Policy 
 
TAN23 Economic Development  National Policy 
 
TAN24 The Historic Environment  National Policy 
 
SP7 Safeguarding of Strategic 

Resources and Assets 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 Landscape  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM6 Flood Prevention 

Measures and Land 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 

Scheduled Ancient Monument  

Tudalen 29



 

 

Drainage 
 
DM7 Dark Skies and External 

Lighting 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM10 
 
 
DM13 

Development on Unstable 
or Contaminated Land 
 
Design and Resources 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 
 
 
Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
DM14 Air Quality Management  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
 
E6 Farm Diversification  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
T1 Travel, Traffic and 

Transport Infrastructure 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG (2018) 
  

 
SPG       Landscape  
 
 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 

Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 

 
Officer Appraisal 
 
Introduction 
 
Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
 

Tudalen 30



 

 

Members are advised to consider this application in accordance with Section 38 (6) of 
the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004, which requires that, if regard is to be 
had to the development plan for the purpose of any determination to be made under the 
Planning Acts, the determination must be made in accordance with the plan unless 
material considerations indicate otherwise. 
 
Site Location and Description 
 
The site subject to this application is located within the open countryside, approximately 
0.3 miles north east of Llanwyddelan. The application site is bound by agricultural land 
to the north, east and south. Located to the east is the existing agricultural complex and 
farmhouse. 
 
Consent is sought in retrospective for the siting of a free range egg laying unit (32,000 
birds), installation of feed hoppers and construction of a new access track off the county 
highway. The proposed poultry unit will comprise of box profile sheeting (Juniper Green) 
and measures approximately 139.6 metres in length by 20 metres in width. The ridge 
(including ridge mounted fans) and eaves height of the proposed building measure 
approximately 6.1 metres and 3.3 metres respectively. The proposal also includes the 
provision of 4 feed silos measuring approximately 8 metres in height.  
 
The proposed building will accommodate a maximum of 32,000 birds and will operate 
on a 13 month cycle. Birds will remain in the building for the duration of the cycle after 
which time the flock will be removed, the building cleaned and a new flock introduced to 
restart the egg production cycle. The birds will have access to a ranging area 
surrounding the proposed building.  
 
Vehicular access to the site will be provided via a new access off the county highway 
located to the north whilst hardstanding/concrete apron will be provided within the 
application site for the parking and turning of associated vehicles.  
 
Environmental Impact Assessment Regulations 2017 
 
Part 2 of the Town and Country Planning (Environmental Impact Assessment) (Wales) 
Regulations 2017 identifies a list of development types and thresholds defining where a 
development proposal is EIA development. These are contained in Schedule 1 and 2 of 
the Regulations. Schedule 1 of the regulations lists where EIA is mandatory and 
Schedule 2 where development must be screened to determine if it is EIA development. 
 
Schedule 1 of the Regulations states that the threshold for the “intensive rearing of 
poultry is 85,000 places for broilers or 60,000 for hens”.  
 
The proposed development will accommodate a maximum of 32,000 birds whilst the 
new floor space will amount to approximately 2792 square metres. On the basis of the 
proposed bird capacity, the proposed development constitutes Schedule 2 
development, exceeding the applicable threshold (500 square metres of new 

Tudalen 31



 

 

floorspace) and therefore the development is required to be screened in accordance 
with Schedule 3 of the Regulations.  
 
Based upon the characteristics of the development, location of the development and 
characteristics of potential impact, it is not considered that the development would have 
a significant environmental impact within the meaning of the Regulations. As such, the 
adopted screening opinion indicates that the development does not amount to EIA 
development.  
 
Key Material Considerations 
 
In determining the planning application, it is considered that the key material planning 
considerations are as follows; 
 

 Planning history/fallback position; 
 Principle of development; 
 Landscape and visual Impact; 
 Highway safety and movement; 
 Ecology, biodiversity and the environment; 
 Impact on residential amenity; 
 Impact on rights of way & tourism; 
 Cultural heritage; 
 Ground stability. 

 
 
Planning History/Fallback position 
 
Full planning permission was granted for the erection of an egg laying unit, creation of 
vehicular access and all associated works under planning reference P/2018/0466. 
Development commenced on site however it was subsequently brought to the attention 
of Development Management that works were not being undertaken in accordance with 
the planning permission, specifically that the location and scale of the building differed 
from the approved plans. 
 
Upon further investigation, it was confirmed that the building measured approximately 
139.6 metres, some 5.6 metres longer than the approved structure whilst the building 
had been sited forward of the approved location. Despite the extended length, the bird 
capacity remains 32,000. As a result of the aforementioned deviations, the extent of 
groundworks has altered whilst ground levels have also been affected. Members are 
advised that the building is now operational.  
 
Notwithstanding the above, Members are encouraged to consider this planning 
application on individual merit, in accordance with relevant planning policies. The extant 
planning permission and potential fallback position is however a material planning 
consideration in determining this application.  
 

Tudalen 32



 

 

Principle of Development 
 
Planning Policy Wales confirms that local planning authorities should adopt a 
constructive approach towards agricultural development proposals, especially those 
which are designed to meet the needs of changing farming practices or are necessary 
to achieve compliance with new environmental, hygiene or welfare legislation.  
 
Technical Advice Notes 6 and 23 accept the principle of appropriate agricultural 
development within the open countryside subject to all other material considerations 
being satisfied.  
 
Having carefully considered the details submitted, it is considered that the principle of 
the proposed agricultural development is supported by relevant planning policies and 
technical guidance. 
 
Landscape and Visual Impact 
 
The character and quality of Powys’ landscape is one of its most important assets being 

a combination of its natural history and geology and the influence of human activity on 

these natural assets. Maintaining the distinctiveness of Powys’ landscape is an 

important factor in safeguarding the quality of its environment and ensuring the social, 

cultural and economic well-being of the area. It is important for the tourism industry and 

also provides an attractive setting and sense of place in which local people can live and 

work. 

 

LDP policy DM4 confirms that proposals for new development outside the Towns, Large 

Villages, Small Villages and Rural Settlements defined in the Settlement Hierarchy must 

not, individually or cumulatively, have an unacceptable adverse effect, on the valued 

characteristics and qualities of the Powys landscape. All proposals will need to:  

 

1. Be appropriate and sensitive in terms of integration, siting, scale and design to the 

characteristics and qualities of the landscape including its: topography; development 

pattern and features; historical and ecological qualities; open views; and tranquillity; and  

2. Have regard to LANDMAP, Registered Historic Landscapes, adjacent protected 

landscapes (National Parks and Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty) and the visual 

amenity enjoyed by users of both Powys landscapes and adjoining areas.  

 

Proposals which are likely to have a significant impact on the landscape and/or visual 

amenity will require a Landscape and Visual Impact Assessment to be undertaken. 

 

Further guidance with the Landscape SPG indicates that outside of the settlements, 

agricultural development proposals where the floor space exceeds 1000 square metres 

Tudalen 33



 

 

have potential to result in landscape impacts. In such instances, the expectation of 

Officers is that the agent provides a baseline assessment indicating how the proposal 

has been sited and designed to integrate into the landscape as required by policy DM4. 

An assessment of the likely impacts together with mitigation measures are considered 

within the Design and Assessment Statement accompanying the application.  

 

For the purposes of LANDMAP’s Visual and Sensory layer, the proposed site of 

development is located within the ‘Tregynon Rolling Hills’ aspect area which is 

characterised by upland hills, lower plateau and scarp slopes. The aspect area is 

recognised by LANDMAP as an extensive area of rolling hillsides and pasture land with 

gently sloping sides and rounded tops. Views across the area are generally from a 

succession of rolling ridges and due to the size of the area long distance views are 

limited/insignificant to far distant ridgelines of upland areas. The sense of place is 

settled, safe and relatively intimate. Vegetation is predominantly Oak/mixed broadleaf 

woodland patched with a strong field pattern defined by hedgerows. General landscape 

character is defined strongly by the rolling farmed landscape with traditional farming 

techniques common ie hedge laying and few intensive farming practices employed. In 

light of the above assessment, the Visual and Sensory value is high.  

 

The existing complex Tyn Yr Wtra comprises of a number of large, modern agricultural 

buildings which occupy an elevated position, adjacent to the public highway. The 

proposed poultry unit will be located to the east of the existing complex. Access to the 

proposed unit will be provided via a new farm track off the public highway, which given 

the topography of the site will result in substantial engineering operations.  

 

The poultry unit as constructed is located on an engineered plateau, adjacent to the 

existing building complex. Whilst acknowledging the increased scale of the building and 

elevated siting above the public highway, the profile of the building is such that its height 

is level with the ridge height of the existing structures within the existing complex.  

 
During the application site visit, a visit was also made to a number of viewpoints on the 

public highway surrounding the application site. Whilst acknowledging the building’s 

visibility, Officers note that the unit is viewed against the backdrop of the existing 

agricultural complex, aiding its assimilation within the rural landscape. Furthermore, 

intervening topography and existing vegetation, whilst not concealing the unit in its 

entirety, does offer further mitigation and natural screening. When approaching the site 

from Llanwyddelan, views of the building are considered to be fleeting given the 

topography of the ground adjoining the public highway, intervening buildings and 

established landscaping. Again, Officers note that the building is seen within the context 

of the existing agricultural complex.   

 

Tudalen 34



 

 

The application is accompanied by a landscaping scheme which indicates the 

implementation of new native species planting to the north east and north west of the 

poultry unit whilst a new hedgerow is to be planted along the roadside boundary to the 

north. Despite reference on the submitted plan to the implementation of the landscaping 

in the first planting season following first occupation, on clarifying this with the agent, it 

is understood that the landscaping has yet to be implemented owing to poor weather 

conditions during the 2019-2020 planting season (November to March). As such, a 

suitable condition will be attached to any planning permission requiring implementation 

in the next planting season and maintenance of the landscaping thereafter.  

 

For the reasons outlined above and notwithstanding the third party objection, Officers 

do not consider that the proposed development will unacceptably adversely affect the 

character and appearance of the landscape by virtue of its siting and scale. As such, the 

proposal is considered to be compliant with planning policy, particularly policies SP7, 

DM4 and DM13 of the adopted development plan. Notwithstanding the above, in order 

to manage the associated landscape impacts, conditions will be attached to any grant of 

consent securing the implementation and maintenance of the existing and proposed 

landscaping. Subject to the above, it is not considered that the proposed development 

will have an unacceptable adverse impact on the Powys landscape, compliant with 

policies SP7 and DM4 of the Powys LDP.  

 
Highway Safety and Movement 

 

Policy DM13 confirms that applications must demonstrate that the development has 

been designed and located to minimise the impacts on the transport network - journey 

times, resilience and efficient operation - whilst ensuring that highway safety for all 

transport users is not detrimentally impacted upon.  

 

In accordance with policy DM13, development proposals are expected to meet all 

highway access requirements, (for all transport users), vehicular parking standards and 

demonstrate that the strategic and local highway network can absorb the traffic impacts 

of the development without adversely affecting the safe and efficient flow of traffic on 

the network or that traffic impacts can be managed to acceptable levels to reduce and 

mitigate any adverse impacts from the development. 

 

Access to the proposed poultry unit will be provided via the provision of a new access 

track off the public highway. The proposed egg production unit will require bulk food 

delivered to the farm by HGV twice a month. Eggs will be collected approximately every 

3 days and vehicles delivering new birds will arrive once every 13 months. It is 

anticipated that the above will generate a maximum of 10-12 lorry movements a month. 

 

Tudalen 35



 

 

Despite the Highway Authority initially expressing concerns regarding the access as 

constructed, following the submission of revised details and subject to the conditions as 

recommended within their correspondence of 30th July 2020 being imposed, it is 

considered that sufficient highway provision is capable of being provided. As such, it is 

not considered that the proposed development will adversely affect highway safety and 

movement, compliant with LDP policies DM13 and TD1.  

 

Biodiversity, Ecology & The Environment 

 

Policy DM2 of the Powys Local Development Plan seeks to maintain biodiversity and 

safeguard protected important sites. Policy DM2 states that proposed development 

should not unacceptably adversely affect any designated site, habitat of species 

including locally important site designations. 

 

In order to inform the assessment of potential impact on the environment, the planning 

application is accompanied by the following documents; 

 

 Manure Management Plan; 

 Drainage Plan; 

 Method Statement Pollution Prevention Statement; 

 A Report on the Modelling of the Dispersion and Deposition of Ammonia. 

 

SSSI’s and SAC 

 

Intensive livestock installations have the potential to impact protected sites through 

aerial emissions (ammonia and nitrogen deposition).  

 

The following statutory designated sites are present within 5km of the proposed 

development: 

 

 Cors Llanllugan SSSI  

 Gregynog SSSI 

 

The application is accompanied by a Report on the Modelling of the Dispersion and 

Deposition of Ammonia from the Proposed Free Range Egg Laying Chicken House 

produced by AS Modelling & Data Ltd dated 26th April 2018 which has been subject to 

review by Natural Resources Wales. 

 

According to the detailed modelling, background ammonia concentration around Pentre 

Penarth is 1.41_$lgNH3/m3, and the background nitrogen deposition is 28.70kgN/ha/yr 

Tudalen 36



 

 

to woodland and 19.04kgN/ha/yr for short vegetation. The report sources these figures 

from the Air Pollution Information System (APIS, February 2018). NRW consider that 

the ammonia critical levels and nitrogen critical loads used for the sites are considered 

correct.  

The report thereafter predicts that the process contributions to ammonia concentration 

and nitrogen deposition are below the thresholds applied by NRW in their assessment 

of potential impacts on protected sites. These predictions for the Gregynog SSSI are 

0.3% for ammonia, and 0.2% for nitrogen at the highest concentrations. Based upon the 

evidence provided, no objection is offered by NRW regarding the impact of the 

proposed poultry development on the designated sites both on an individual basis or in 

combination with existing and proposed intensive livestock units within the surrounding 

area.  

On the basis of the responses received, it is not considered that the proposed 

development will have an unacceptable impact on designated and protected sites. The 

proposal is therefore considered to be compliant with policy DM2 of the Powys LDP, 

Technical Advice Note 5 and Planning Policy Wales. 

 
Protected Species 
 
Policy DM2 of the Powys Local Development Plan, TAN5 and PPW seek to safeguard 

protected species and their habitats. Policy DM2 states that proposed development 

should not unacceptably adversely affect any habitat or protected species. 

 

Following consultation, no concerns have been raised by NRW in respect of the 

Protected Species and therefore, on this basis, Officers do not consider that the 

proposed development will adversely affect any habitat or protected species in 

compliance with the aforementioned policy. 

 
Pollution Control 

 

Officers acknowledge that the proposal has the potential to pollute the environment 

through the spreading of manure, surface water run off together with associated 

construction and operational activities unless suitable control/mitigation measures are 

implemented.    

 

The application is accompanied by a Manure Management Plan (MMP) which confirms 

both spreading practices and contingency measures. The document confirms that the 

MMP has been prepared for a total stock comprising of 1500 sheep, 100 cows and 

32,000 laying hens and thereafter indicates that the existing farming enterprise  has 

sufficient capacity to dispose of all manure produced by the enterprise in accordance 

Tudalen 37



 

 

with all the relevant regulations and legislation. It is noted that a buffer (no-spread 

zones) of 10 metres has been provided around all watercourses whilst a 50 metre buffer 

has been applied to all wells, springs and boreholes in accordance with CoGAP 

recommendations. The plan further includes contingency measures when spreading of 

manure is not possible i.e. wet, waterlogged or frozen conditions; in these instances, 

manure from the building will be stored in covered areas on the farm.   

 

Drawing no GD-GHU/01 identifies proposals to ensure that dirty and clean water are 

kept separate. Dirty water from wash down will be collected in an underground sealed 

tank (compliant with SSAFO Regulations (Wales) 2010 Standards), before being 

tankered out as necessary and applied to the land in accordance with the MMP. The 

plan identifies that clean water from roof and clean surfaces will be drained to open and 

stone filled infiltration trenches and piped each side of the buildings, the clean water 

would then be piped to a surface water attenuation system. At the wash down stage the 

clean water system around the yard will be diverted to the underground dirty water tank.  

 

A further drainage plan has been submitted (GD-MZ213-04) following prolonged 

dialogue with the Council’s Land Drainage Authority which concentrates on surface 

water run-off along the proposed access road. It is understood from the proposed plan 

that surface water run-off will be directed to an ACCO drain and downstream defender 

via a drainage channel parallel to the the access road. Thereafter, the water will be 

piped to a historic drainage system which discharges into an existing brook on 

neighbouring land. It is understood that the proposed ‘drainage grip’ will collect the 

existing ‘greenfield’ surface water run-off from the remaining field and highway surface 

water run-off, communicating this to the piped system under the highway. 

 

Unlike the earlier proposal, Members are advised that the scheme will now need to 

comply with Welsh Government’s Statutory Standards for Sustainable Drainage 

Systems. Whilst Land Drainage has confirmed that the submitted scheme is 

fundamentally acceptable, the agent is advised that SAB approval will be required, 

independent of the planning application. Additional details to satisfy SAB requirements 

may be required at SAB approval stage however for the purposes of determining the 

planning application, Officers are satisfied that the submitted information demonstrates 

that a suitable drainage scheme is capable of being implemented, thus controlling 

surface water run-off and potential pollution of the environment.  

 

In commenting on the submitted drainage details, NRW has confirmed that subject to 

the drainage system being built in accordance with the identified plans, it is unlikely the 

proposal would cause pollution to the wider environment. 

 

Tudalen 38



 

 

A Method Statement Pollution Prevention Plan accompanies the application and 

indicates mitigation measures that will be implemented during the construction and 

operation of the proposed poultry installation. In commenting on the submitted details, 

NRW has confirmed that subject to compliance with the proposed measures, it is 

unlikely that the proposed development will adversely impact the surrounding 

environment.   

 

Having carefully reviewed the information submitted, NRW has confirmed that subject to 

appropriate conditions being attached securing adherence to the submitted documents, 

it is not considered that the proposed development would have an unacceptable 

adverse impact on the surrounding environment by reasons of pollution. 

 

Residential Amenity 

 

LDP policy DM13 states that development proposals will only be permitted where the 

amenities enjoyed by the occupants of nearby or proposed properties are not 

unacceptably affected. Officers acknowledge that intensive livestock installations have 

potential to generate noise impact from plant/equipment (roof mounted extractor fans) 

and general operational activities whilst odour impact may potential arise from the 

spreading of manure and cleaning of the unit at the end of the bird cycle. Indeed, 

concerns have been expressed by interested third parties regarding the potential impact 

of the proposed development on residential amenity.  

 

In order to inform the assessment of potential impact on local amenity, the planning 

application is accompanied by the following documents; 

 

 Manure Management Plan; 

 A Report on the Modelling of the Dispersion and Deposition of Ammonia; 

 Dust Management Plan. 

 
Noise 

 

The proposed poultry unit incorporates the use of mechanical ventilator extractor fans 

which thermostatically control the building temperature. The nearest non associated 

residential property (The Old Rectory) is located within approximately 215 metres of the 

proposed development. 

 

Following Officer discussions, Environmental Health (EH) indicated that a complaint 

regarding early morning feed deliveries had been received by the department. As such, 

EH subsequently contacted the applicant who confirmed that feed deliveries would be 

re-scheduled in the interests of residential amenity. As a result of the above, EH 

Tudalen 39



 

 

subsequently requested that a condition limiting the timings of deliveries be attached to 

any planning permission granted. Whilst such a condition was not imposed on the 

earlier planning permission, in light of the above, it is considered both reasonable and 

necessary to attach such a condition in the interests of residential amenity. 

 

Notwithstanding the above comments, subject to the recommended condition being 

attached, no objection to the proposed development on noise grounds has been 

offered.  

 

Dust 

 

The application is accompanied by a Dust Management Plan. In commenting on the 

proposed development, no objection has been received from Environmental Health 

Officer in respect of dust. 

 
Odour 
 

The potential impacts of manure spreading both on and off the applicants’ land is a 

material planning consideration. The fact that manure spreading for agricultural 

purposes does not require planning permission is also a material consideration in the 

planning balance but cannot be a substitute for a proper assessment of the impacts of 

manure spreading.  

 

A Manure Management Plan (MMP) accompanies the planning application which 

indicates that all manure produced by the poultry unit will be spread on the applicants 

holding in accordance with COGAP guidance. Manure will be removed from the 

buildings every 3-4 days and thereafter managed in accordance with the MMP. The 

MMP further specifies ‘no-spread’ zones in accordance with the CoGAP 

recommendations i.e. buffers of 10 metre have been provided to all watercourses whilst 

50 metre buffer zones will be implemented around wells and boreholes.  

 

Members are advised that concerns have been raised regarding the waste calculations 

and livestock numbers. In commenting on the claims of misleading data, the applicants 

agent has confirmed that the MMP calculations is reflective of current stock numbers 

however acknowledges that this is subject to change, as would be the case with any 

farming enterprise. In anycase, manure spreading on the farm will be undertaken in 

accordance with the relevant agricultural guidance identified above.  

 

Despite third party objection, based upon the consultee comments received and 

location of manure spreading as detailed on the associated maps, it is not considered 

that the spreading of manure on the holding will result in unacceptable adverse impacts 

Tudalen 40



 

 

on the environment as outlined above or the amenities enjoyed by residents of nearby 

properties, compliant with LDP policy DM13.  

 
Residential Amenity Conclusion 

 

In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development will not have an 

unacceptable adverse impact on the amenities enjoyed by occupants of nearby 

properties by reasons of noise, odour and dust. Therefore, Development Management 

considers the proposal to be in accordance with planning policy, in particular LDP policy 

DM13 and DM14. 

 

Rights of Way & Tourism 

 

LDP Policy DM13 seeks to oppose development which would have an unacceptable 

adverse impact on existing and established tourism assets and attractions.  

 

Whilst noting the proximity of the application site to nearby public rights of way, given 

the associated distances together with existing and proposed landscaping, it is not 

considered that the proposed development will have an unacceptable impact on the 

public rights of way network.  

 

Gwernydd Hall Holiday Park is located to the north east of the application site. Whilst 

noting the proximity and intervisibility, given the location of the proposed development 

adjacent to an existing farm complex, topography of the landscape together with 

existing and proposed landscaping, it is not considered that the proposed development 

will detract from the character and appearance of the landscape. Furthermore, given the 

Environmental Health comments received, it is not considered that the proposed 

development will result in unacceptable odour and noise impacts thus safeguarding the 

amenities of those visiting the holiday home park.  

 

In light of the above, it is not considered that the proposed development will have an 

unacceptable adverse impact on existing and established tourism assets and 

attractions, compliant with LDP policies SP7 and DM13. 

 

Cultural Heritage 

 

Listed Buildings 

 

The Old Rectory is a grade II listed property located approximately XXX to the south 

west of Tynyrwtre. The Old Rectory is sited in a slightly elevated position above the 

road that approaches Llanwyddelan from the B4389 and is well screened with garden 

Tudalen 41



 

 

planting. The principal outlook of the property is south east with the service rooms 

facing north-west towards the road. Tynyrwtre is set on lower land than The Old Rectory 

with many large farm buildings being visible from the public road. 

 

In considering the impact of the proposed development on the listed building, Officers 

are mindful of Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation areas) Act 

1990 and paragraph 6.1.10  of Planning Policy Wales (2018) which confirms that for any 

development proposal affecting a listed building or its setting, the primary material 

consideration is the statutory requirement to have special regard to the desirability of 

preserving the building, or its setting, or any features of special architectural or historic 

interest which it possesses. The setting is often an essential part of a building's 

character especially if a park, garden or grounds have been laid out to complement its 

design or function.  

Tynyrwtre is set on lower land than The Old Rectory with many large farm buildings 

being visible from the public road. The proposed building is to the rear (south east) of 

the farm holding and as such not readily visible from the front of Tynyrwtre. 

In commenting on the proposed development, the Council’s Built Heritage Officer notes 

that there is potential for the new building to be visible from the public road that leads 

from the B4389 towards Llanwyddelan when travelling from the bridge into the 

settlement. Nevertheless, the land slopes steeply to the north, and at the point when the 

current farm buildings to the rear of Tynyrwtre are visible, The Old Rectory is not.   

Similarly when The Old Rectory is visible from the public highway, the majority of the 

farm buildings at Tynyrwtre and the proposed building will not be readily visible. 

Whilst the current proposal is slightly longer than the previously approved plans 

(P/2018/0466), for the reasons stated, it is not considered that the impact on the listed 

building would be greater than the previously consented scheme.  

In light of the above and having regard to the guidance in section 16 and 66 of  The 

Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, Conservation Principles,  

section 6.5.11 of PPW, TAN24 and its annexes, given the distance and topography from 

the site of the proposed egg laying unit to the grade II listed building, it is not considered 

that the proposed scheme would harm the setting of the Old Rectory. The proposal is 

therefore considered compliant with LDP policy SP7, Technical Advice Note 24 and 

Planning Policy Wales. 

Scheduled Ancient Monuments 

Technical Advice Note 24 explains that when considering development proposals that 

affect scheduled monuments or other nationally important archaeological remains, there 

should be a presumption in favour of their physical preservation in situ, i.e. a 

Tudalen 42



 

 

presumption against proposals which would involve significant alteration or cause 

damage, or would have a significant adverse impact causing harm within the setting of 

the remains. 

PPW also explains that local authorities should value, protect, conserve and enhance 

the special interests of  parks and gardens and their settings included on the register of 

historic parks and gardens in Wales and that the effect of a proposed development on a 

registered park or garden or its setting should be a material consideration in the 

determination of a planning application. 

It is understood that there are nine scheduled monuments within 3km of the application 

site, of these the following six are not inter-visible due to the intervening topography: 

MG001 Caersws Roman Site, MG161 Roman Earthwork NE of Caersws (revealed by 

aerial photography), MG222 Caersws Roman Fort: Section of South Western Defences, 

MG242 Caersws Roman Fort and Vicus: section in southern part of vicus, MG243 

Caersws Roman Fort and Vicus: section in SE part of vicus, MG244 Caersws Roman 

Fort: South-west corner defences.  

Three other scheduled monuments including MG064 Gwyn Fynydd Camp, MG123 Wyle 

Cop Camp and MG324 Caersws Roman road are considered to be potentially inter-

visible with the application site however given the intervening distances and topography, 

it is not considered that the proposed development will adversely affect the setting of 

the monuments.  

Whilst acknowledging the potential for harm to the identified monuments, in their 

correspondence, Cadw confirm that this is considered to be ‘slight or very slight’. Given 

the intervening distances, topography and vegetation, Officers do not consider that this 

would amount to significant harm and therefore it is not considered that the proposed 

development will compromise the desire to safeguard the setting of scheduled assets 

compliant with policy SP7 of the Powys LDP, Technical Advice Note 24 and Planning 

Policy Wales.  

Ground Stability 

As part of the proposed development and consistent with the earlier approved scheme, 

Members are advised that engineering operations have been undertaken to alter the 

associated ground levels, predominantly the land adjoining the proposed poultry unit. 

During the course of the application, third party concerns were expressed regarding 

potential subsidence and associated risk to public safety following a prolonged period of 

adverse weather conditions.  

Ground instability is addressed within LDP policy DM10 which indicates that 

development proposals on unstable land will be permitted where they do not result in 

Tudalen 43



 

 

any additional problems of ground instability either on or off site and shall remediate the 

instability. DM10 however acknowledges that ground instability is often associated with 

sites that been the subject of waste disposal operations or areas where past mineral 

workings have taken place. That said, the policy does emphasise that the responsibility 

for determining the extent and effects of instability lies with the developer, who must 

ensure that land is suitable for the development proposed. 

In responding to the concerns raised, the applicant’s agent confirmed that the building is 

located on existing hardstanding and not engineered ground. That said, it was 

acknowledged that the topsoil on the adjoining ground had slipped during extreme 

weather conditions although this did not amount to material subsidence. In addition to 

the above, correspondence from the company responsible for the groundworks 

completed inspected the site following the slippage experience and thereafter confirmed 

that this had not affected the stability and integrity of the ground on which the poultry 

unit is located. Officers are also aware that the Highway Authority undertook a site visit 

following receipt of the subsidence report and subsequently confirmed no evidence of 

subsidence that would impact the integrity or safety of the public highway.  

For the reasons outlined above, whilst noting the slippage of top soil experienced, it is 

not considered that there is any evidence to suggest that the development has been 

built on unstable ground for the purposes of policy DM10 and Planning Policy Wales. In 

anycase, Officers consider that any future subsidence would fall within the remit of the 

Health and Safety Executive.  

Recommendation 

Having carefully considered the details submitted together with all statutory consultee 

responses and third party representations, Officers are satisfied that the proposed 

development complies with the relevant policies within the Powys Local Development 

Plan, Technical Advice Notes and Planning Policy Wales. As such, the recommendation 

is one of conditional consent. 

Conditions: 

1. The development shall be carried out strictly in accordance with the approved plans 

and documents (drawing no's: GD-MZ213-01 Location Plan, GD-MZ213-02 Proposed 

Elevations and Floor Plan, GD-MZ213-03 Block Plan, GD-MZ213-04 Drainage Plan, 

GD-MZ213-05 Proposed Highway Plan, GD-GHJ/01 Drainage Plan, GD-GHJ/05 

Ranging Area Hedgerow Plan and GD-GHJ/06 Landscaping Plan and documents; 

Design, Access and Planning Statement, Dust Management Plan dated September 

2019, Manure Management Plan - Rev A received 16/09/2019, Manure Management 

Plan Maps received 03/10/2019 and Method Statement Pollution Prevention).  

Tudalen 44



 

 

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 

Development) Order 1995 (or any order revoking and re-enacting that Order with or 

without modification), no extensions or alterations to the unit shall be erected without 

the consent of the Local Planning Authority.  

3. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (Use Classes) 

Order 1987 and the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted Development) 

Order 1995 as amended or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory 

instrument revoking and re-enacting that Order with or without modification, the 

premises shall not be used for any purpose other than that hereby authorised. 

4. The maximum number of birds on site shall not exceed 32,000 laying hens. 
 
5. All deliveries to and from site in connection to this application shall be carried out 

between the following hours, Monday to Fridays from 08.00 to 18.00 hours, Saturdays 

from 08.00 to 13.00 hours and at no time on Sundays, Bank and public holidays. 

 

6. Within 10 days of the date of this permission the access shall be constructed so that 

there is clear visibility from a point 1.05 metres above ground level at the centre of the 

access and 2.4 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway, to points 0.6 

metres above ground level at the edge of the adjoining carriageway and 59 metres 

distant in a westerly direction and 120m in an easterly direction measured from the 

centre of the access along the edge of the adjoining carriageway.  Nothing shall be 

planted, erected or allowed to grow on the area(s) of land so formed that would obstruct 

the visibility and the visibility shall be maintained free from obstruction for as long as the 

development hereby permitted remains in existence. 

 

7. Upon formation of the visibility splays as detailed above the centreline of any new or 

relocated hedge should be positioned not less than 1.0 metre to the rear of the visibility 

splay and retained in this position as long as the development remains in existence. 

 

8. Within 10 days of the date of this permission the area of the access to be used by 

vehicles is to be constructed to a minimum of 410mm depth, comprising a minimum of 

250mm of sub-base material, 100mm of bituminous macadam base course material and 

60mm of bituminous macadam binder course material and be finished in a 40mm 

bituminous surface course material for a distance of 20 metres from the edge of the 

adjoining carriageway.  Any use of alternative materials is to be agreed in writing by the 

Local Planning Authority prior to the access being constructed. 

9. Within 10 days of the date of this permission, provision shall be made within the 

curtilage of the site for the parking of not less than two cars and two heavy goods 

vehicles together with a turning space such that all vehicles serving the site may both 

Tudalen 45



 

 

enter and leave the site in a forward gear. The parking and turning areas shall be 

retained for their designated use for as long as the development hereby permitted 

remains in existence.  

10. The gradient of the access shall be constructed so as not to exceed 1 in 15 for the 

first 20 metres measured from edge of the adjoining carriageway along the centre line of 

the access and shall be retained at this gradient for as long as the development remains 

in existence. 

11. No surface water drainage from the site shall be allowed to discharge onto the 

county highway. 

12. Any vehicular entrance gates installed within the application site shall be set back 

20 metres distant from the edge of the adjoining carriageway and shall be constructed 

so as to be incapable of opening towards the highway and shall be retained in this 

position and form of construction for as long as the dwelling/development hereby 

permitted remains in existence.  

13. Within 10 days of the date of this permission the existing means of access shown on 

drawing number GD-MZ213-05 shall be stopped up, in materials to be agreed in writing 

by the Local Planning Authority and this shall be retained for as long as the 

development is in existence. 

14. Notwithstanding the approved landscaping plan (drawing no. GD-GHJ/06), all 

planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be 

carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons following the date of this planning 

permission. Any trees or plants which within a period of 5 years from the completion of 

the development die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be 

replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species. 

15. No external lighting shall be installed unless a detailed external lighting design 

scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 

The external lighting scheme shall identify measures to avoid impacts on nocturnal 

wildlife.  The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details. 

Reasons 

1. To ensure adherence to the plans stamped as approved in the interests of clarity and 

a satisfactory development.  

2. In order to control development which has the potential to have adversely affect the 

amenity of the area in contradiction to Policy DM13 of the Powys Local Development 

Plan and Planning Policy Wales (2016).  

Tudalen 46



 

 

3. In order to control development which has the potential to have adversely affect the 

amenity of the area in contradiction to Policy DM13 of the Powys Local Development 

Plan and Planning Policy Wales (2016). 

4. In order to control bird numbers and safeguard the environment in accordance with 

policies SP7, DM2 and DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2018), TAN 5: 

Nature Conservation and Planning, Planning Policy Wales (2018). 

5. To protect the local amenities of the local residents by reason of noise in line with 

LDP policy DM13, Technical Advice Note 11 – Noise (1997) and Planning Policy Wales 

(2018). 

 
6. In the interests of highway safety and movement in accordance with policies DM13 
and TD1 of the Powys Local Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport (2007) 
and Planning Policy Wales (2018). 
 
7. In the interests of highway safety and movement in accordance with policies DM13 
and TD1 of the Powys Local Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport (2007) 
and Planning Policy Wales (2018). 
 
8. In the interests of highway safety and movement in accordance with policies DM13 
and TD1 of the Powys Local Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport (2007) 
and Planning Policy Wales (2018). 
 
9. In the interests of highway safety and movement in accordance with policies DM13 
and TD1 of the Powys Local Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport (2007) 
and Planning Policy Wales (2018). 
 

10. In the interests of highway safety and movement in accordance with policies DM13 
and TD1 of the Powys Local Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport (2007) 
and Planning Policy Wales (2018). 
 
11. In the interests of highway safety and movement in accordance with policies DM13 
and TD1 of the Powys Local Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport (2007) 
and Planning Policy Wales (2018). 
 
12. In the interests of highway safety and movement in accordance with policies DM13 
and TD1 of the Powys Local Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport (2007) 
and Planning Policy Wales (2018). 
 
13. In the interests of highway safety and movement in accordance with policies DM13 
and TD1 of the Powys Local Plan (2018), Technical Advice Note 18 – Transport (2007) 
and Planning Policy Wales (2018). 
 
14. To ensure that the site is adequately landscaped in accordance with policies DM4 

Tudalen 47



 

 

and DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2018). 

15. To comply with Powys County Council’s LDP Policies DM2 in relation to the Natural 

Environment and DM4 in relation to ecological qualities of the landscape and meet the 

requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, December 2018), TAN 5: Nature 

Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

 

Tudalen 48



T
udalen 49



M
ae'r dudalen hon w

edi'i gadael yn w
ag yn fw

riadol



 

 

Planning, Taxi Licensing and Rights of Way Committee Report 
 

Application 
Number: 

20/0720/FUL 
 

Grid Ref: E: 313374 

N: 322965 

Community 
Council: 

 Llanrhaeadr-Ym-Mochant 
Community 

Valid Date: 02.06.2020 

 
Applicant: Mr Nathan Prodger 
 
Location: Plot Adjoining Gerallt, Rhos Y Brithdir, Llanfyllin, SY22 5HD.   
 
Proposal: Erection of a dwellinghouse, installation of septic tank, formation of vehicular 
access and all associated works.  
 
Application Type: Full Application 
 
The reason for Committee determination 
 
The application has been ‘called in’ by the Local Member for Llanrhaeadr-Ym-
Mochnant.  
 
Consultee Responses 
 
Consultee Received 

 
Hafren Dyfrdwy 18th Jun 2020 

As the proposal has minimal impact on the public sewerage system I can advise we have 

no objections to the proposals and do not require a drainage condition to be applied. 

 

PCC-(N) Highways 22nd Jun 2020 

The Highway Authority are unable to provide observations/recommendations at this 

juncture as we are unable to undertake the requisite site visit. 

 

Additional Comments Received 3rd August 2020;  

The County Council as Highway Authority for the County Unclassified Highway, U2866 
 
Wish the following recommendations/Observations be applied 
Recommendations/Observations 

Tudalen 51

4.3



 

 

 
The Highway Authority objects to the above-named application for the following reasons. 
 
An application such as this should include full access details, such as the full visibility 
splays, access width, radii, surfacing detail, drainage, and gradient. However, no such 
detail has been submitted for consideration.  
 
The visibility splay to the north east appears to cross third party land, we note that Notice 
has not been served on the property known as Gerallt. Welsh Government Planning 
Circular WGC 016/2014 Section 3.43 states “It would be unreasonable to expect an 
applicant to comply with a condition which relates to an area of land or an element not in 
their control at the time when planning permission is granted”. Therefore, the Highway 
Authority are unable to suggest conditions in relation to the access visibility splays. 
 
The County Unclassified highway is narrow along its entire length, to the west/south of 
the site the U2866 is constrained by infrequent formal/informal passing bays to its 
junction with the B4391. We note that the applicant has not proposed any mitigation. 
 
As submitted, the proposed development is contrary to LDP Policies T1 and DM13 (10), 
Manual for Streets and Welsh Government Planning Circular WGC 016/2014. The 
Highway Authority therefore recommends that the application be refused. 
 
Powys Local Development Plan (LDP) Compliance 

Policy T1 – Travel, Traffic and Transport Infrastructure  

Transport infrastructure, traffic management improvements and development proposals 

should incorporate the following principal requirements:   

 

1. Safe and efficient flow of traffic for all transport users, including more 

vulnerable users, and especially those making ‘Active Travel’ journeys by 

walking or cycling; 

2. Manage any impacts to the network and the local environment to 

acceptable levels and mitigate any adverse impacts; and,   

3. Minimise demand for travel by private transport and encourage, promote 

and improve sustainable forms of travel including Active Travel 

opportunities in all areas.   

  
 
Policy DM13 – Design and Resources   

 
Development proposals must be able to demonstrate a good quality design and shall 
have regard to the qualities and amenity of the surrounding area, local infrastructure 
and resources.  

 
Proposals will only be permitted where all of the following criteria, where relevant, are 
satisfied: 

Tudalen 52



 

 

 
10. The development has been designed and located to minimise the impacts on the 
transport network - journey times, resilience and efficient operation - whilst ensuring that 
highway safety for all transport users is not detrimentally impacted upon.  

 
Development proposals should meet all highway access requirements, (for all transport 
users), vehicular parking standards and demonstrate that the strategic and local 
highway network can absorb the traffic impacts of the development without adversely 
affecting the safe and efficient flow of traffic on the network or that traffic impacts can be 
managed to acceptable levels to reduce and mitigate any adverse impacts from the 
development. 
 
Manual for Streets 1 & 2 
 
Welsh Government Planning Circular WGC 016/2014 
 

Environmental Protection 11th Jun 2020 

I have several concerns regarding this application. 

1 The distance of the septic tank and soakaway from the dwelling don't appear to comply 

with the requirements of the Building Regulations document H2. Could the agent confirm 

these distances. 

2 There are no percolation test results provided. 

3.The drainage in this area is poor and a percolation test on the site on the other side of 

the road demonstrated that the ground was not sufficient for the installation of a septic 

tank/private treatment plant and soakaway.  

I object to the application at the current time due to insufficient information being provided 

but I would suggest that the applicant consider an alternative method of disposing of the 

foul waste, such as the installation of a treatment plant and a discharge into a 

watercourse with NRW consent. 

 

Additional Comments Received 29th June 2020;  

1. The new plans must show the distances of the foul drainage system from 
dwellings/watercourses/private water supplies etc comply with the requirements of 
document H2 of the building Regs. If the field is in the families ownership and the 
drainage system can be moved this shouldn’t be a significant issue.  
 

2. Drainage is a crucial part of any development and as alternative foul arrangements 

Tudalen 53



 

 

in this area are very limited we need confirmation that the proposed septic tank 
and soakaway will be sufficient prior to the determination of the application. This is 
the reason for requesting the percolation test results and holes left open for 
inspection prior to the application being determined.  

 
3. There are a number of properties in Rhos-y-Brithdir that use septic tanks. The last 

application I considered in that area was in close proximity to your site and the 
ground conditions were very poor therefore I have concerns that the same ground 
conditions could be a problem.  

 

PCC-Ecologist 29th Jun 2020 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on planning application 20/0720/FUL which 

concerns an application for erection of a dwelling-house, installation of septic tank, 

formation of vehicular access and all associated works at a plot adjoining Gerallt, Rhos y 

Brithdir, Llanfyllin, SY22 5HD. 

I have reviewed the proposed plans, aerial images as well as records of protected and 

priority species and designated sites within 500m of the proposed development. 

The data search identified 11 records of protected and priority species within 500m of the 

proposed development with no records found for the site itself. Species recorded within 

500m of the proposed development include hedgehog, hare, curlew, lapwing, and 

common and soprano pipistrelle bats, plus moth species; garden tiger and minor 

shoulder-knot.  

No statutory designated sites were identified within 500m of the proposed development. 

No non-statutory designated site were identified within 500m of the proposed 

development. 

The proposed development is located on the site of semi-improved grassland bordered 

by hedgerows and trees and is likely to impact areas of semi-improved neutral or acidic 

grassland, hedgerow and tree, which are habitats considered to be of relatively high 

ecological value. Phase 1 habitat mapping records the site as semi-improved neutral 

grassland, which is supported by available aerial imagery. 

Preliminary Ecological Appraisal 

Due to the extent of the works proposed in order to establish such a development, a 

preliminary ecological survey is recommended to be undertaken to identify the habitats 

present on and adjacent to the site and potential to support protected species, as well as 

the presence of invasive non-native species. 

Tudalen 54



 

 

The ecological assessment should evaluate the potential impacts of the proposed 

development on protected and/or notable species, such as species of conservation 

concern and locally important species listed in the Powys BAP. 

It is important to note that further surveys following national guidelines at the appropriate 

time of year may be required for any species that are found or have potential to be 

present. These surveys will need to be carried out and the results and any mitigation 

proposed submitted to the LPA prior to determination of the planning application. 

Mitigation and compensation strategies will be required for any impacts upon protected 

species and loss of habitat. 

If any mitigation and/or compensation strategies are proposed for the development, full 

details must be provided with the planning application and, where appropriate, clearly 

illustrated on the proposed plans. 

The applicant should be mindful that in accordance with Powys County Council's duty 

under Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016, TAN 5, LDP policies and the 

Biodiversity and Geodiversity SPG, Powys should ensure as part of the planning process 

that there is no net loss of biodiversity or unacceptable damage to a biodiversity feature. 

Details of ecological consultants working in Powys can be found at www.cieem.net 

(please note this is not a Powys County Council approved list of ecological consultants 

but lists ecological consultants who are members of the Chartered Institute of Ecology 

and Environmental Management). I have also attached some guidance notes regarding 

the commissioning of ecological consultants to undertake survey work. 

Hedgerow Compensation Scheme 

The application confirms that part of a hedgerow will be removed to create access to the 

site. The removal of at least two trees on site may also be required. 

Powys LDP Policy DM2 states that 

Development proposals which would impact on the following natural environment assets 

will only be permitted where they do not unacceptably adversely affect: 

2C. Habitats and Species of principal importance for the purposes of maintaining and 

enhancing biodiversity' as identified by Section 7 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Hedgerows are included on this list and are beneficial to a wide range of biodiversity 

including bats, nesting birds, small mammals, lichen and fungi. 

3B. Local Biodiversity Action Plan Habitats and Species. Powys LBAP includes 

hedgerows under the Linear Habitats Action Plan: 'Linear habitats are important to a wide 

variety of species as refuges, breeding and feeding sites and as links between habitats of 

Tudalen 55



 

 

high biodiversity value'. 

5. Trees, woodlands and hedgerows of significant public amenity, natural or cultural 

heritage. 

Where impacts to hedgerows are identified and cannot be avoided, an appropriate 

compensation strategy will be required. Where possible, translocation of the existing 

hedgerow should be considered. Replacement hedgerow planting will need to be 

identified for any locations where this is not possible. 

Where it is necessary to remove any trees or hedgerows a Tree or Hedgerow 

Compensation Planting Scheme will need to be secured through an appropriately worded 

planning condition. This plan will need to identify appropriate compensation planting for 

the loss of any trees or hedgerow. Details of the tree and/or hedgerow location(s), 

hedgerow length(s), and tree and/or hedgerow species composition, as well as an 

appropriate aftercare scheme, will need to be provided. The chosen species will need to 

be native and reflect the trees and hedgerows present in the local area. 

A Tree and/or Hedgerow Compensation Planting Scheme or Hedgerow Translocation 

Plan could be secured through a planning condition. However, the provision of sufficient 

details submitted at this stage would avoid the need for a pre-commencement condition 

requiring this information. 

Wildlife Sensitive Lighting Plan 

Careful consideration will need to be given to any external lighting of the proposed 

development. Measures will need to be identified to minimise impacts to nocturnal wildlife 

commuting or foraging in the local area or woodland. 

Any external lighting proposed will need to demonstrate compliance with the 

recommendations outlined in the BCT and ILP Guidance Note 8 Bats and Artificial 

Lighting (12th September 2018). Full details can be found at 

https://theilp.org.uk/publication/guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificial-lighting/. 

A wildlife sensitive lighting plan could be secured through a planning condition. However, 

the provision of sufficient details submitted at this stage would avoid the need for a pre-

commencement condition requiring this information. 

In summary, further information in the form of a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal is 

required prior to determination of the application in order to satisfy the requirements of 

Powys County Council's LDP Policies DM2 - The Natural Environment, and to meet the 

requirements of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, December 2018), TAN 5: Nature 

Conservation and Planning and Part 1 Section 6 of the Environment (Wales) Act 2016. 

Tudalen 56



 

 

 

PCC-(N) Land Drainage 10th Jun 2020 

Planning Department: Could the following be added as a recommendation for the 

application.  

All: Having assessed the Planning Application Ref 20/0720/FUL, the SuDS Approval 

Body (SAB) deem that the construction area is greater than 100m2 and therefore this 

proposed development will require SAB approval prior to any construction works 

commencing onsite.  

Please contact the SAB Team on 01597 826000 or via email sab@powys.gov.uk  

For further information on the requirements of SAB and where relevant application 

forms/guidance can be accessed, please visit the following website 

https://en.powys.gov.uk/article/5578/Sustainable-Drainage-Approval-Body-SAB 

If for any reason you believe your works are exempt from the requirement for SAB 

approval, we would be grateful if you would inform us so we can update our records 

accordingly. 

The requirement to obtain SAB consent sits outside of the planning process but is 

enforceable in a similar manner to planning law. It is a requirement to obtain SAB consent 

in addition to planning consent. Failure to engage with compliant SuDS design at an early 

stage may lead to significant un-necessary redesign costs. 

 

Community Council 17th Jun 2020 

I am writing to you on behalf of Llanrhaeadr YM Community Council regarding the above 

planning application submitted to you by Mr Nathan Prodger. 

I can see that the current Status of the application is Pending Consideration 

Llanrhaeadr YM Community Councillors wish to express their full support for this 

application. 

Mr Prodger was born and raised in Rhos-y-Brithdir all has lived there all his life with his 

parents and 2 siblings. 

He wishes to carry on living in the Rhos-y-Brithdir community to be near his family and 

the councillors strongly agree that he should be allowed to live in the area that he 

considers to be his home. 

Tudalen 57



 

 

With so many local young people moving away from rural communities to live in local 

towns, the councillors support Mr Prodger's application and would like the Planning 

Department to take this view into consideration before reaching a decision. 

 

PCC-Building Control 4th Jun 2020 

Building Regulations application required. 

 

Ward Councillor 18th Jun 2020 

Following our earlier conversation, can I call in this application and ask that the planning 

committee consider it. The applicant wishes to live in his own community and supply of 

suitable house is very limited and to build a home on land owned by his family is the only 

way it can be achieved, 

 

PCC-Contaminated Land Officer 29th Jun 2020 

It is noted that the proposed development is situated on land indicated as being within 

250m of a former landfill which represents a potential high risk source of contamination. 

Based on the proximity to potential contaminated land, the sensitivity of the residential 

development, and an absence of appropriate supporting information, the application 

should be refused until such time as the applicant demonstrates that potentially significant 

liabilities have been assessed and understood. 

Planning Policy Wales s.6.9.19 states: 

'Where land contamination issues arise, the planning authority will require evidence of a 

detailed investigation and risk assessment prior to the determination of the application to 

enable beneficial use of land, unless it can already be established that remedial 

measures can be employed155. Where it is known that acceptable remedial measures 

can overcome contamination, planning permission may be granted subject to conditions 

specifying the necessary measures and the need for their implementation, including 

provision for remediating any unexpected contamination which may arise during 

construction. If contamination cannot be overcome satisfactorily, the authority may refuse 

planning permission.' 

 
Representations 

Tudalen 58



 

 

 
Following the display of a site notice on 4th June 2020 a total of 1 public representation 
of support has been received at the time of writing this report, and can be summarised 
as follows;  
 

 Support for young local family.  

 No detrimental impact upon neighbouring properties. 
 
Planning History 
 

App Ref 
 
P/2017/1075 

Description 
 
Outline: Erection of one dwelling, 
formation of new vehicular 
access, installation of foul 
drainage system and all 
associated works. 

Decision 
 
Refused 

Date 
 
15/05/2018 

 

Principal Planning Constraints 
 
Contaminated Land  
Scheduled Ancient Monument 

 

 
Principal Planning Policies 
 

Policy Policy Description Year Local Plan 
 
PPW Planning Policy Wales 

(Edition 10, December 
2018) 

 National Policy 

 
TAN1 Joint Housing Land 

Availability Studies 
 National Policy 

 
TAN2 Planning and Affordable 

Housing 
 National Policy 

 
TAN6 Planning for Sustainable 

Rural Community 
 National Policy 

 
TAN12 Design  National Policy 
 
TAN18 Transport  National Policy 
 
TAN23 Economic Development  National Policy 
 

  

Tudalen 59



 

 

SP1 Housing Growth  Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
SP3 Affordable Housing Target  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP5 Settlement Hierarchy  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SP6 Distribution of Growth 

across the Settlement 
Hierarchy 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
DM2 The Natural Environment  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM4 Landscape  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM7 Dark Skies and External 

Lighting 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM10 Contaminated and 

Unstable Land 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
DM13 Design and Resources  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H1 Housing Development 

Proposals 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H3 Housing Delivery  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H4 Housing Density  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H5 Affordable Housing 

Contributions 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
H6 Affordable Housing 

Exception Sites 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
T1 Travel, Traffic and 

Transport Infrastructure 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 

Tudalen 60



 

 

SPGAH Affordable Housing SPG 
(2018) 

 Local Development 
Plan 2011-2026 

 
SPGBIO Biodiversity and 

Geodiversity SPG (2018) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
SPGLAN Landscape SPG  Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
RES SPG Residential Design 

Guide (2020) 
 Local Development 

Plan 2011-2026 
 
Other Legislative Considerations 
 
Crime and Disorder Act 1998  
 
Equality Act 2010  
 
Planning (Wales) Act 2015 (Welsh language)  
 
Wellbeing of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015  
 
Marine and Coastal Access Act 2009 
 

Officer Appraisal 
 
Site Location and Description 
 
The application site is located within the Community Council area of Llanrhaeadr-Ym-
Mochnant and is not located within a settlement development boundary as defined by 
the Powys Local Development Plan (2018). The site is located on existing agricultural 
land and is surrounded by the neighbouring residential property, Gerallt, to the north, 
agricultural land to the south and west, and the (U2866) Highway to the east.  
 
This application seeks consent for the erection of a single dwelling house, installation of 
septic tank, formation of vehicular access and all associated works. The proposed 
dwelling will measure approximately 8.39 metres in length by 9.1 metres in width, with a 
height to the eaves of approximately 4.9 metres and a height to the ridge of 
approximately 7.9 metres. The selected materials for the proposed dwelling are as 
follows; mixed red brick, grey uPVC windows and doors, under a grey tiled roof. The 
site will be accessed off the (U2866) Highway and will be bordered with a 900mm high 
post and wire fence.  
 
Principle of Development 
 
Local Development Plan (LDP) Policy H1 sets out the principle of development for all 
residential developments. Rhos y Brithdir is not located within a settlement development 

Tudalen 61



 

 

boundary or identified as being a Town, Large or Small Village within the Powys LDP. 
Consideration must therefore be given as to whether Rhos y Brithdir can be considered 
to be a rural settlement. Housing development proposals will only be permitted in rural 
settlements as follows;  
 
“3. In Rural Settlements:  
  

i. For affordable housing in accordance with Policy H6 where the development 
proposal is for only a single dwelling on a site which is well integrated into the 
settlement; or  

ii. Where development satisfies one of the criteria set out in 4. i) - iii) below”. 
 
Within the Powys LDP under Strategy 3.2.23 Rural Settlements, it states that 28% of 
Powys’ population live in rural hamlets or isolated dwellings. Rural Settlements are the 
smallest tier of settlement size (number of households) and function and often possess 
few, if any, services. These are not named but are defined by the following 
characteristics under LDP Policy SP5;  
 
“Historically recognised / named settlements; and 
  

 Contain at least 10 closely grouped dwellings.  
 

 The count of dwellings in bullet point 2 above shall not be taken to include 
farmhouses, rural conversions or dwellings originally granted for local 
need/affordable or agricultural/rural occupancy”. 

 
Under the Unitary Development Plan (UDP), Rhos y Brithdir was considered to be a 
rural settlement, however consideration must be given to whether Rhos y Brithdir is still 
considered a rural settlement under the LDP.  
 
Rhos y Brithdir is sporadic in nature and its clusters do not contain more than 10 closely 
grouped dwellings, with many of these dwellings being local needs and therefore would 
not be included within the count of dwellings outlined under Policy SP5 above. 
Furthermore, it is noted that planning application P/2017/1075, which sought consent for 
the erection of one dwelling, formation of new vehicular access, installation of foul 
drainage system and all associated works, located opposite this application site, was 
refused on the basis that Rhos y Brithdir is not considered to be a rural settlement and 
the proposal would result in the development of an open market dwelling in the open 
countryside. Based on the sporadic nature of Rhos-y-Brithdir and the fact it has 
previously been established as not being a rural settlement under planning application 
P/2017/1075, Rhos-y-Brithdir is not considered to be a rural settlement and the proposal 
would therefore result in the development of an open market dwelling in the open 
countryside.  
 
Consideration is now given to residential development in the Open Countryside. LDP 
Policy SP6 states that only housing development that complies with the national 

Tudalen 62



 

 

exceptions policies as set out in Planning Policy Wales and TAN 6 will be permitted in 
the open countryside. LDP Policy H1 states the following with regard to housing 
development in the open countryside; 
 
“4. In the Open Countryside:  
  

i. Where the development relates to a need for housing which meets current 
national policy on housing in the open countryside; or  

ii. Where the development relates to the conversion of a rural building(s) which 
accords with the current national policy on the sustainable re-use of rural 
buildings; or  

iii. Where the development relates to the renovation of a former abandoned dwelling 
in accordance with Policy H8”. 

 
The proposal does not relate to any national policy on housing in the open countryside, 
does not involve the conversion of a rural building and does not relate to the renovation 
of an abandoned dwelling. It is therefore considered that the proposal for residential 
development at this location would result in unjustified development in the open 
countryside. 
 
Furthermore, it is noted the internal floor area of the dwelling would be 127.18sqm, and 
it is noted that the dwelling has been proposed as an open market dwelling. To be 
considered eligible for affordable housing the floor area of the dwelling proposed would 
need to be less than 115sqm. Concern is therefore raised with the scale of the dwelling 
proposed as no open market dwelling would be deemed acceptable at this location.  
 
In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development would be contrary 
to PPW, TAN 6 and LDP Policies SP6 and H1, and the principle of development is 
therefore unacceptable.  
 
Design and Landscape Impact  
 
LDP Policy DM13 require development proposals to demonstrate a good quality design 
and still have regard to the qualities and amenity of the surrounding area and proposals 
will only be permitted where they enhance or complement the character of the 
surrounding area in terms of siting, appearance, integration, scale, height, massing and 
design detailing. 
 
The proposed dwelling will measure approximately 8.39 metres in length by 9.1 metres 
in width, with a height to the eaves of approximately 4.9 metres and a height to the ridge 
of approximately 7.9 metres. The selected materials for the proposed dwelling are as 
follows; mixed red brick, grey uPVC windows and doors, under a grey tiled roof. The 
site will be accessed off the (U2866) Highway and will be bordered with a 900mm high 
post and wire fence.  
 
Consideration is given to LDP Policy DM4 – Landscape. A visual and sensory 

Tudalen 63



 

 

evaluation of the application site using NRW LANDMAP classifies this area of land as 
being of high value, being attractive and settled. The dwelling is to adopt materials 
which would be in keeping with the adjacent dwelling and given this siting adjacent to a 
neighbouring dwelling it is not considered this this proposal would cause an 
unacceptable impact upon the landscape and the design is considered acceptable.  
 
In light of the above, it is considered the proposed development complies with relevant 
planning policy.  
 
Agricultural Land Classification 
 
The site in question has been defined as category 4 agricultural land, this is defined as 
poor quality agricultural land. In light of the lands classification as being category 4, it is 
not considered to be the best and most versatile agricultural land or of particular value 
to agriculture within the locality in accordance with advice provided within PPW and 
TAN 6.  
 
In light of the above, it is considered the loss of this agricultural land would be 
acceptable and the proposed development complies with relevant planning policy.  
 
Amenities enjoyed by occupiers of neighbouring properties 
 
In considering the amenities enjoyed by occupiers of neighbouring properties, 
consideration has been given to the Powys Residential Design Guide (October 2004) & 
LDP: DM13 (Part 11).  
 
The proposed development is not considered to offer any impact upon loss of daylight 
to any neighbouring dwellings; there are no properties that would be adversely affected 
when considering the 25 degree rule, which prohibits development that would exceed a 
line of 25 degrees taken from the nearest habitable room of adjoining existing 
properties. The proposal also complies with the 45 degree rule, where an angle of 45 
degrees is measured in a horizontal plane and taken from the middle of the window of 
the nearest habitable room in any adjacent rooms. The proposed development is 
considered to be acceptable when considered against the above criteria.  
 
The proposed development is also not considered to offer any adverse impacts to any 
neighbouring properties in terms of loss of privacy. The Powys Residential Design 
Guide states that there should be a minimum of 20 metres between directly facing 
habitable rooms on rear elevations. There are no windows on the elevation of the 
nearest neighbouring property that directly face the rear elevation of the proposed 
dwelling, therefore this is considered acceptable. As stated above, the proposed 
development is considered to comply with the 45 degree rule and therefore the 
proposed development is considered acceptable when considered against the above 
criteria. 
 
In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 

Tudalen 64



 

 

relevant planning policy.  
 
Highway Safety 
 
A safe access, parking and visibility splays are a fundamental requirement of any 
development (LDP: DM13, Part 10).  
 
The proposed development would involve the creation of a new access off the (U2866) 
Highway to the east and would provide 3 car parking spaces within the curtilage of the 
application site, in accordance with CSS Parking Standards. The Local Highway 
Authority have been consulted on the proposed development and have noted that an 
application such as this should include full access details including visibility splays, 
access width, radii, surfacing detail, drainage information and gradient, however, no 
such detail has been submitted for consideration. It has been noted that the (U2866) is 
narrow along its entirety. Detailed drawings are required to demonstrate that the new 
access will be completed to appropriate standards, without this information it is unclear 
as to whether the new access proposed is acceptable and will be completed to 
appropriate standards. It is therefore considered that insufficient information has been 
submitted as part of the application to demonstrate that a safe access and egress can 
be achieved from the application site. 
 
In light of the above, it is considered that insufficient information has been submitted as 
part of the application to demonstrate that the new access proposed achieves a safe 
access and egress to and from the application site. The proposed development 
therefore fails to comply with policies PPW, TAN 18, DM13 (Part 10) and T1. 
 
Biodiversity 
 
Policy DM2 states that proposals shall demonstrate how they protect, positively manage 
and enhance biodiversity and geodiversity interests. Proposals which would impact on 
natural environment assets will only be permitted where they do not unacceptably 
adversely affect those assets. This is further emphasised within Technical Advice Note 
(TAN) 5. 
 
The Ecologist reviewed the plans and identified 11 records of protected and priority 
species within 500m of the proposed development, although no records were found for 
the site itself. There are no statutory or non-statutory designated sites within 500m of 
the proposed development, there is an Area of Ancient Semi Natural Woodland 
approximately 470 east of the site, however this will not be affected by the proposed 
development. The application would not impact any existing buildings or trees, however 
would require removal of part of a hedgerow to facilitate the creation of the access.  
 
The Ecologist has recommended that a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal is submitted in 
support of the application given the extent of the works impacting an area of grassland, 
trees and hedgerow. The Ecologist has advised that this information is required to 
identify the habitats present on and adjacent to the site and their potential to support 

Tudalen 65



 

 

protected species, as well as the presence of invasive non-native species. It is therefore 
considered that without this information, there is insufficient information to assess the 
impact of the proposed development upon habitats, protected species and invasive non-
native species.  
 
Regarding the loss of part of a hedgerow, the Ecologist has stated a condition should be 
attached to the granting of any consent which requires the submission of a Hedgerow 
Compensation Planting Scheme or Hedgerow Translocation Plan. Furthermore, in order 
to minimise impacts to nocturnal wildlife commuting or foraging in the local area or 
woodland, a condition has been recommended requiring the submission of a Wildlife 
Sensitive Plan.  
 
The application has proposed biodiversity enhancement in the form of tree planting and 
landscaping within the proposed curtilage of the dwelling. These enhancement 
measures are deemed acceptable and will be secured through the inclusion of an 
appropriately worded condition.  
 
In light of the above, it is therefore considered that insufficient information has been 
submitted as part of the application to assess the impact of the proposed development 
upon habitats, protected species and invasive non-native species. The proposed 
development therefore fails to comply with policies PPW, TAN 5, and LDP Policies 
DM2, SP7, SPG: Biodiversity and Geodiversity (Adopted October 2018). 
 
Land Contamination  
 
With respect to land contamination, specific reference is made to LDP policy DM10 
which seeks to control development on contaminated or unstable land. 
 
PCC – Contaminated Land were consulted on the proposed development and noted 
that the proposed development is situated on land indicated as being within 250m of a 
former landfill and is therefore a potential high source of contamination.  
 
Planning Policy Wales s.6.9.19 states:  
  
‘Where land contamination issues arise, the planning authority will require evidence of a 
detailed investigation and risk assessment prior to the determination of the application 
to enable beneficial use of land, unless it can already be established that remedial 
measures can be employed. Where it is known that acceptable remedial measures can 
overcome contamination, planning permission may be granted subject to conditions 
specifying the necessary measures and the need for their implementation, including 
provision for remediating any unexpected contamination which may arise during 
construction. If contamination cannot be overcome satisfactorily, the authority may 
refuse planning permission.’ 
 
The application does not include any supporting evidence to demonstrate that the risks 
associated with contaminated land have been assessed and understood. Given the 

Tudalen 66



 

 

proximity to potential contaminated land and the sensitivity of residential development it 
is considered there is currently insufficient information to be able to assess the risks of 
land contamination.  
 
In light of the above, it is considered that insufficient information has been submitted as 
part of the application to demonstrate that the potential risks of contaminated land have 
been assessed and understood. The proposed development therefore fails to comply 
with policies PPW and DM10.  
 
Drainage  
 
The application has proposed to provide a septic tank and soakaway as the chosen 
drainage method. However, PCC – Environmental Health have objected to this stating 
that the distance of the septic tank and soakaway do not comply with Building 
Regulations Requirements and no percolation test results have been provided to 
support the application. In addition, concern has been raised by the Environmental 
Health Officer of ground conditions in the vicinity to support additional drainage. It is 
therefore considered that insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate 
that the proposed development would be served by an adequate means of foul 
drainage, contrary to Criterion 12 of Policy DM13 of the Powys Local Development Plan 
(2018), Planning Policy Wales (2018) and Welsh Government Circular 008/2018 - 
Planning requirements in respect of the use of private sewerage in new development, 
incorporating septic tanks and small sewage treatment plants (2018). 
 
Scheduled Ancient Monument (SAM) 
 
The application site lies approximately 260 metres south of the Scheduled Ancient 
Monument, Ty Newydd Dyke, therefore consideration has been given to LDP Policy 
SP7 – safeguarding of Strategic Resources and Assets. Given the distance between the 
site and the SAM, the presence of intervening development, and the fact the site is 
located adjacent to existing built development, it is not considered that the proposed 
development would cause any unacceptable harm upon the SAM.  
 
In light of the above, it is considered that the proposed development complies with 
relevant planning policy.  
 
Decision - Refuse 
 
Reasons 
 

1. The proposed development is considered to be unsustainable development in 
the open countryside, contrary to Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 2018), 
Technical Advice Note (TAN) 6: Planning for Sustainable Rural Communities 
(2010) and policies SP6 and H1 of the Powys Local Development Plan 
(2018).  

 

Tudalen 67



 

 

2. Insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate that the new access 
proposed onto the (U2866)  achieves a safe access and egress to and from 
the application site, contrary to policies Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 
2018), Technical Advice Note (TAN) 18: Transport (2007), and policies DM13 
(Part 10) and T1 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2018).  

 
3. Insufficient information has been submitted as part of the application to 

demonstrate that the potential risks of contaminated land have been 
assessed and understood, contrary to Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 
2018) and policy DM10 of the Powys Local Development Plan (2018).  

 
4. Insufficient information has been submitted to demonstrate that the proposed 

development would be served by an adequate means of foul drainage, 
contrary to Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 2018), Welsh Government 
Circular 008/2018 - Planning requirements in respect of the use of private 
sewerage in new development, incorporating septic tanks and small sewage 
treatment plants (2018) and Criterion 12 of policy DM13 of the Powys Local 
Development Plan (2018).  

 
5. Insufficient information has been submitted as part of the application to assess 

the impact of the proposed development upon habitats, protected species and 
invasive non-native species, contrary to Planning Policy Wales (Edition 10, 
2018), Technical Advice Note (TAN) 5: Nature, Conservation and Planning, 
and policies DM2, SP7, SPG: Biodiversity and Geodiversity (Adopted October 
2018) of the Powys Local Development Plan (2018).  
 

________________________________________________ 
Case Officer: Rhys Evans, Senior Planning Officer 
Tel: 01597 827235 E-mail: rhys.evans@powys.gov.uk     

 

Tudalen 68



Tudalen 69



Mae'r dudalen hon wedi'i gadael yn wag yn fwriadol



Application No. Proposal Location

20/0430/VAR Discharge of S52 
agreement attached to 
permission M17892 
relating to occupancy 
restrictions

5 Tan Y Bwlch
Bwlch-y-ffridd
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3JS

20/0813/FUL Construction of a covered 
slurry store 
(Resubmission)

Severn House 
Back Lane
Criggion
Shrewsbury
SY5 9BE

20/0838/HH Erection of triple bay 
garage with first floor 
storage over

The Whitehouse
Coedway
Crew Green
SY5 9AR

19/1937/FUL Erection of agricultural 
building and all 
associated works

Luggy Brook Cottage 
Red Lane
Berriew
Welshpool
SY21 8AS

20/0625/HH Demolition of the existing 
garages, erection of a 
replacement detached 
garage and two 
extensions to the existing 
dwelling

Awelfa 
Berriew
Welshpool
SY21 8BA

Berriew 
Community

Approve 04/12/2019 Full Application 22/07/2020

Approve 24/04/2020 Householder 04/08/2020

Bausley With 
Criggion 
Community

Approve 28/05/2020 Full Application 30/07/2020

Approve 10/06/2020 Householder 31/07/2020

Aberhafesp 
Community

Approve 04/03/2020 Discharge/Modificatio
n of S106

28/07/2020

Delegated List 

89 Applications

Excel Version
Go Back

Parish Name Decision Date Application Application Type Date Decision 
Issued

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 1 of 17

T
udalen 71

5



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0742/FUL Extension to existing 
caravan park to provide 
an additional 9 no. static 
holiday caravans, 
formation of roadway, 
installation of a private 
treatment plant and all 
associated works

Maesperthi Caravan Site
Penegoes
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8UN

20/0926/HH External alterations to an 
existing garage

Cae Poeth
Forge
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8RP

20/0821/HH Demolition of existing lean 
to and the erection of a 
single storey extension to 
the east as well as single 
storey extension with roof 
deck to the west

Oerffrwd Cottage
Clatter
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5NP

20/0963/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 14, 26 and 27 
of planning approval 
18/0466/FUL

Parc Yr Esgob 
Llanwnog
Caersws
SY17 5NY

20/0372/HH Erection of a single-storey 
front extension and two 
storey side extension, and 
new retaining wall

Pykins
Carno
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5JU

Carno 
Community 
Council

Approve 24/03/2020 Householder 30/07/2020

Caersws 
Community

Approve 29/05/2020 Householder 23/07/2020

Approve 23/06/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

05/08/2020

Cadfarch 
Community

Approve 21/05/2020 Full Application 29/07/2020

Approve 09/06/2020 Householder 21/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 2 of 17

T
udalen 72



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0623/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 3, 5 and 17 of 
planning approval 
20/0082/FUL

Land  West Of Bedwsyth
Carno
Caersws
Powys

20/0480/FUL Change of use of building 
from office to domestic 
use garage

Blue Barn
Green Lane
Churchstoke
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6EN

20/1051/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment to 
planning approval 
P/2013/0364 to remove 
conditions 5, 6 and 7 
relating to the Code for 
Sustainable Homes

Hillcrest 
Hall Bank
Churchstoke
Montgomery
SY15 6EN

20/0909/HH Erection of a rear single 
storey extension

Min Yr Awel
Golf Links Road
Builth Wells
Powys
LD2 3NF

20/0885/CLE Application for certificate 
of lawfulness for an 
existing use (section 191) 
namely use of 
outbuildings adjacent to 
dwelling as ancillary 
domestic use

Pleasant View
Trelystan
Leighton
Powys
SY21 8HZ

Forden With 
Leighton & 
Trelystan Com

Approve 11/06/2020 Certificate of 
Lawfulness - Existing

27/07/2020

Cilmery 
Community

Approve 08/06/2020 Householder 30/07/2020

Churchstoke 
Community

Approve 11/05/2020 Full Application 31/07/2020

Approve 08/07/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

22/07/2020

Approve 24/04/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

31/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 3 of 17

T
udalen 73



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/1011/AGR Agricultural notification for 
the erection of an 
agricultural building for 
the storage of fodder and 
machinery

New House Farm
Newchurch
Kington
Powys
HR5 3QF

20/0728/FUL Change of use from 
residential storage space 
to A1 shop (retrospective)

Emporium 
Cemmaes
Machynlleth
SY20 9PR

20/0581/FUL Erection of an extension 
to an existing agricultural 
building for the housing of 
farm manures together 
with all other associated 
works

Lower Llaneon Farm 
Buildings
Franksbridge
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5SA

20/0852/HH Replacement of existing 
garage/workshop with a 
storey and a half 
workshop and garage with 
annexe above

Langdale 
Guilsfield
Welshpool
SY21 9PP

20/0807/FUL Proposed change of use 
of domestic garage to 
form holiday 
accommodation and all 
associated works

Newlands 
Maes Mawr
Welshpool
SY21 9DA

20/0461/CAC Conservation Area 
Consent for the removal 
of asbestos cladding, and 
demolition of porch and 
garage

Sawmills Cottage
Kerry
Newtown
SY16 4LL

Kerry 
Community

Approve 23/03/2020 Conservation Area 
Consent

03/08/2020

Guilsfield 
Community

Approve 11/06/2020 Householder 05/08/2020

Consent 28/05/2020 Full Application 31/07/2020

Glascwm 
Community

Approve 08/04/2020 Full Application 29/07/2020

Glantwymyn 
Community

Approve 21/05/2020 Full Application 29/07/2020

Gladestry 
Community

Permitted 
Developm
ent

15/07/2020 Agricultural 
Notification

30/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 4 of 17

T
udalen 74



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0460/HH Removal of asbestos 
cladding to front elevation 
and replacement of 
existing porch and garage

Sawmills Cottage
Kerry
Newtown
SY16 4LL

20/0619/HH Erection of extension 
(revised proposal to that 
approved under 
P/2013/1240)

11 Rowan Court
Kerry
Newtown
SY16 4DH

20/0702/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 attached 
to P/2017/0816 to allow 
the mast to remain in 
place for a further 3 years

Land At Old Neuadd Bank
East Of A483
North Of Llanbadarn 
Fynydd
Powys
SY16 4BW

20/0618/LBC Application to attach an 
electricty meter box to the 
exterior of the property

Odd Corner Cottage
8 High Street
Knighton
Powys
LD7 1AT

20/0855/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 6 of planning 
approval 19/1430/FUL

Land To South Of 
Meadowside 
Penybont
Llandrindod Wells 
Powys
LD1 6UT

20/0540/FUL Proposed new garage in 
relation to residential 
property

Slate House Lodges
Llandinam
Powys

Llandinam 
Community

Approve 01/04/2020 Full Application 20/07/2020

Llanbadarn Fawr 
Community

Approve 05/06/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

20/07/2020

04/08/2020

Knighton 
Community

Consent 17/04/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

21/07/2020

Approve 26/03/2020 Householder 03/08/2020

Approve 20/04/2020 Householder 06/08/2020

Approve 04/05/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 5 of 17

T
udalen 75



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0560/REM Section 73 application to 
remove condition 2 from 
planning permission 
M20397 regarding 
occupany restriction

Tan-Y-Coed 
Oakley Park
Llanidloes
SY18 6LW

20/0981/DIS Application to discharge 
condition 4 of planning 
approval 20/0348/FUL

Land NW Of Garn Fach 
Forestry
Llandinam
Nr Newtown
Powys

20/1143/NMA Application for a non-
material amendment to 
planning permission 
M/2005/0175 in relation to 
the rewording of condition 
4

Brickfields
Llandinam
Caersws
Powys
SY17 5BQ

20/0756/FUL Erection of two detached 
bungalows and formation 
of new access, driveway 
and parking.

Penybryn 
Grosvenor Road
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5NA

19/1786/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 5, 6 and 9 of 
planning approval 
P/2016/1036

Land Adjacent To Windy 
Ridge
Arddleen
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6PY

Llandrinio And 
Arddleen 
Community

Approve 04/11/2019 Discharge of 
Condition

22/07/2020

29/07/2020

Llandrindod 
Wells 
Community

Approve 18/05/2020 Full Application 27/07/2020

Approve 03/04/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

29/07/2020

Approve 25/06/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

29/07/2020

Approve 22/07/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 6 of 17

T
udalen 76



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0433/HH Demolition of existing 
storm porch, erection of a 
replacement porch, 
erection of a two storey 
side extension, erection of 
a double garage and 
extension of residential 
curtilage

Gwernowddy New House
Hendre Lane
Llandrinio
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6SF

20/0579/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 2 of 
planning consent 
19/0697/FUL in relation to 
approved plans

Llwyn Farm 
Pen-Rhos
Llanymynech
SY22 6QD

20/0968/ELE Application made under 
Section 37 of Electricity 
Act 1989  to install an 
additional electricity pole 
and minor diversion of an 
existing low voltage 
overhead line

Dragon Bridge Cottage
Arddleen
Llanymynech
Powys
SY22 6RU

20/0571/HH Erection of a side 
extension

3 Heulfryn
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 0BH

20/0955/AGR Construction of 
agricultural access track

Nantywellan 
Dolau
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5UW

20/0289/HH Erection of an extension 32 Bridge Street
Llanfyllin
Powys
SY22 5AU

Llanfyllin 
Community

Approve 17/03/2020 Householder 29/07/2020

Llanfihangel 
Rhydithon 
Community

Prior 
Approval 
Approved

01/07/2020 Agricultural 
Notification

04/08/2020

28/07/2020

Llanfair 
Caereinion 
Community

Approve 08/04/2020 Householder 20/07/2020

Approve 13/03/2020 Householder 22/07/2020

Approve 08/04/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

05/08/2020

Approve 16/06/2020 Electricity Overhead 
Line

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 7 of 17

T
udalen 77



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0310/HH Erection of extensions 
and retrospective 
permission for the 
creation of parking 
spaces, to include all 
associated works 
(Resubmission)

Llwyn Gwesion
Cefn Gorwydd
Llangammarch Wells 
Powys
LD4 4DN

20/0763/HH Erection of a garage The Gables 
Llan-Y-Wern
Brecon
LD3 0TN

20/0750/FUL Installation 3x 199kw & 1x 
300kw biomass boilers 
and all associated works 
(retrospective)

Ty Brith 
Llangyniew
Welshpool
SY21 9EN

20/0637/FUL Construction of a dwelling 
with detached garage and 
creation of new vehicular 
access.

Green Villa 
Llangurig Road
Llanidloes
SY18 6ES

20/0730/FUL Formation of new 
agricultural access

Brynderwin 
Bryndu Road
Llanidloes
SY18 6JH

20/0746/LBC Listed building consent for 
replacement back door 
(revised design to 
previous approval 
19/0909/LBC for 
replacement of porch, 2 
doors and fascia board, re 
pointing of property)

Bodawel 
Waterfall Street
Llanrhaeadr-Ym-Mochnant
Oswestry
SY10 0JX

Llanrhaeadr-Ym-
Mochant 
Community

Consent 26/05/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

30/07/2020

Llanidloes 
Community

Approve 24/04/2020 Full Application 29/07/2020

Approve 11/05/2020 Full Application 07/08/2020

Llangyniew 
Community

Consent 18/05/2020 Full Application 05/08/2020

Llangors 
Community 
Council

Approve 08/06/2020 Householder 27/07/2020

Llangammarch 
Community

Approve 21/02/2020 Householder 06/08/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 8 of 17

T
udalen 78



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0796/LBC Listed building consent for 
internal alterations for 
formation  of new opening 
to create larger foyer area  
along with new stud 
partitioning to create 
kitchen/bar area.

The Hall (Former Green 
School)
Llanrhaeadr-ym-mochnant
Oswestry
Powys

20/0810/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 14 and 16 of 
planning approval 
19/1697/FUL

The Hollies 
Pen-Rhos
Llanymynech
SY22 6QE

20/0985/DIS Discharge of conditions 6 
and 7 of planning 
approval 18/0971/FUL 
(Remediation Verification 
Report)

1 Waterloo Terrace 
Llansantffraid-Ym-Mechain
SY22 6AT

20/0395/FUL Change of use and 
alterations to 
workshop/office/garage to 
form a holiday let and 
improvements to existing 
access

Ty Bryn Ochr 
Gelli-Lwyd Lane
Pen-Y-Bont
Oswestry
SY10 9JJ

20/0437/FUL Installation of 1x 230kw 
biomass boiler and all 
associated works

Upper Cilgee
Doldowlod
Llandrindod
Powys
LD1 6HD

Llanyre 
Community

Approve 12/03/2020 Full Application 28/07/2020

Llansantffraid 
Community

Approve 05/06/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

29/07/2020

Approve 25/06/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

28/07/2020

Consent 02/06/2020 Full Application 31/07/2020

Consent 26/05/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

06/08/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 9 of 17

T
udalen 79



Delegated List 

89 Applications

19/1751/FUL Change of use of Chapel 
(D1) to a community arts 
centre and residential 
accomodation and 
internal alterations  (part 
retrospective)

Capel Y Graig
Graig Fach
Machynlleth
Powys

20/0980/DIS Discharge of condition 23 
of planning permission 
P/2016/1227 in relation to 
drainage details - Drawing 
Nos:-  2550_T_000-01, 
2550_T_100-01, 
2550_T_500-01, 
2550_T_500-02, 
2550_T_SD-01, 
2550_T_SD-03 and 
Wallingford Report 
WHS1435
Ordinary Watercourse 
Consent

Land Adjoining Cemetery
Machynlleth
Powys
SY20 8HE

19/1752/LBC Internal and external 
alterations to include 
changes to the internal 
layout, installation of a 
disabled toilet, general 
repairs, and all associated 
works

Capel Y Graig
Graig Fach
Machynlleth
Powys

Machynlleth 
Community

Refused 25/11/2019 Full Application 05/08/2020

Refused 25/11/2019 Listed Building 
Consent

05/08/2020

Approve 25/06/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

29/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 10 of 17

T
udalen 80



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0587/FUL Change of use of land to 
equine together with 
formation of a horse riding 
arena and associated 
works

Hill View
New Mills
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3NW

20/0377/HH Demolition of existing 
carport/shed and erection 
of garage with home 
office space, to include 
extension of residential 
curtilage

Caethle
Meifod
Powys
SY22 6DN

20/0665/HH Demolition of existing 
garage and lean-to and 
erectition of new single 
storey extension, and 
replace the roof and 
dormers throughout.

Twll Farm
Pentre'r-beirdd
Guilsfield
Powys
SY21 9DN

20/0735/FUL Erection of a manure 
store and all associated 
works

Ystym Colwyn 
Meifod
SY22 6XT

20/0570/HH Extension to bungalow Cwm Dail
Newtown
Powys
SY16 4JS

20/0816/TRE Works to a tree in a 
conservation area to 
reduce the height

Oakfield Cottage
Gaol Road
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6QR

Montgomery 
Community

Approve 29/05/2020 Works to trees in 
Conservation Area

23/07/2020

Mochdre 
Community

Approve 03/04/2020 Householder 21/07/2020

Meifod 
Community

Approve 19/03/2020 Householder 21/07/2020

Approve 04/05/2020 Householder 27/07/2020

Consent 18/05/2020 Full Application 03/08/2020

Manafon 
Community

Approve 09/04/2020 Full Application 31/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 11 of 17

T
udalen 81



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0886/DIS Discharge of conditions 3, 
4, 5, 6 and 7 from 
planning permission 
19/2108/LBC in relation to 
vent details, removal of 
materials, materials to be 
used, door details and 
blockwork details

Ty Bryn
1 Castle Terrace
Montgomery
Powys
SY15 6PB

20/0785/FUL Conversion of redundant 
barn into a one bedroom 
dwelling and associated 
works

The Barn At Carreg Llwyd 
Place
South Street
Rhayader
Powys
LD6 5BL

19/2042/FUL Development of 18 
affordable dwellings and 
associated works

Former Red Dragon Public 
House & Newtown Youth 
Centre 
Plantation Lane
Newtown
Powys
SY16 1LQ

20/0424/LBC Listed building consent for 
retention of works carried 
out namely removal of 
paint to lower part of 
building

The Regent Centre 
Broad Street
Newtown
SY16 2NA

20/0634/FUL Erection of a steel portal 
framed manure store and 
all other associated works

Upper Gwestydd 
Upper Gwestydd Lane
Cefn Mawr
Newtown
SY16 3LA

Newtown And 
Llanllwchaiarn 
Community

Approve 20/12/2019 Full Application 03/08/2020

Approve 10/03/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

28/07/2020

Approve 01/05/2020 Full Application 31/07/2020

Nantmel 
Community

Approve 28/05/2020 Full Application 29/07/2020

Approve 09/06/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

21/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 12 of 17

T
udalen 82



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0752/FUL Change of use of 
redundant A1 shop (Store 
21) to A3 (Bar & Cafe) 
and associated works

Store 21
12-13 Broad Street
Newtown
Powys
SY16 2NA

20/0811/HH Proposed Rear Extension 
and Alterations

14 Lower Canal Road
Newtown
SY16 2HY

20/0806/AGR Erection of an agricultural 
building

Land At Upper Gwestydd
Cefn Mawr
Newtown
Powys
SY16 3LA

18/0060/LBC LBC: Repair and 
stabilisation of timber 
frame barn, rebuilding of 
collapsed brick / stone 
flank wall and 
replacement of cladding 
and associated works

Nantddu
Penybont
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5SP

20/0731/HH Proposed Extension and 
associated Works

Tynllan 
Llandegley
Llandrindod Wells
LD1 5UF

20/1156/NMA Non-material amendment 
to planning consent 
P/2014/0672 to vary 
condition 38

Hendy Wind Farm
Bettws Disserth
Llandrindod Wells
Powys
LD1 5RP

05/08/2020

Refused 04/06/2020 Full Application 30/07/2020

Penybont 
Community

Approve 14/06/2018 Listed Building 
Consent

29/07/2020

Approve 12/05/2020 Householder 06/08/2020

Approve 15/07/2020 Non-Material 
Amendment

05/08/2020

Approve 05/06/2020 Householder 27/07/2020

Approve 15/05/2020 Full Application

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 13 of 17

T
udalen 83



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0462/HH Erection of storage shed 4 Castle Dyche 
Scottleton Street
Presteigne
LD8 2BL

20/0875/HH Demolition of a single 
storey extension/garage 
and erection of 
replacement two storey 
extension

Trincomalee
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2DP

20/0876/CAC Demolition of a single 
storey extension/ garage 
and erection of 
replacement two storey 
extension

Trincomalee
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2DP

20/0859/HH Existing garage/ 
workshop removed & 
replaced with new timber 
frame summer house on 
the same footprint

43 Hereford Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2AT

20/0860/CAC Existing garage/ 
workshop removed & 
replaced with new timber 
frame summer house on 
the same footprint

43 Hereford Street
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2AT

20/0957/HH Erection of single storey 
extensions to provide 
disabled facilities

Tiburon
13A Caefelyn
Norton
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2UB

Approve 15/06/2020 Householder 31/07/2020

Householder 04/08/2020

Approve 11/06/2020 Conservation Area 
Consent

04/08/2020

Presteigne 
Community

Approve 04/06/2020 Householder 04/08/2020

Approve 08/06/2020 Householder 30/07/2020

Approve 08/06/2020 Conservation Area 
Consent

30/07/2020

Approve 11/06/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 14 of 17

T
udalen 84



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0708/HH Removal of chimney 
stack

Vicarage Cottage
Church Street
Rhayader
Powys
LD6 5BE

20/0709/CAC Removal of chimney 
stack

Vicarage Cottage
Church Street
Rhayader
Powys
LD6 5BE

20/0630/HH Erection of single storey 
side extension to be used 
as annexe 
accommodation to the 
main dwelling, involving 
an extension of the 
residential curtilage

Dolhelfa Ganol 
Llangurig
Llanidloes
SY18 6RX

20/0445/REM Section 73 application to 
vary condition 1 attached 
to planning permission 
P/2014/1318 to extend 
the time limit for 
extraction of material to 
31st May 2025

Buttington Quarry 
Buttington
Welshpool
SY21 8SZ

20/0509/HH Erection of two storey 
extension and a carport 
with study/office above, 
including demolition of 
outbuilding and all 
associated works

17 Woodside
Welshpool
SY21 7NF

Welshpool 
Community

Approve 27/03/2020 Householder 30/07/2020

Trewern 
Community

Approve 12/03/2020 Removal or Variation 
of Condition

23/07/2020

St. Harmon 
Community

Approve 28/04/2020 Householder 23/07/2020

Rhayader 
Community

Refused 03/06/2020 Householder 27/07/2020

Refused 03/06/2020 Conservation Area 
Consent

27/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 15 of 17

T
udalen 85



Delegated List 

89 Applications

20/0805/DIS Discharge of condition 5 
of planning permission 
P/2016/0522 in relation to 
Groundwater Quality 
report

Petrol Filling Station And 
Premises
Salop Road
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 7ES

20/0853/FUL Change of use of the 
existing dwelling (C3 Use 
Class) to care home (C2 
Use Class) for use in 
conjunction with the 
adjacent Golfa Hall 
residential care home.

Nant Golfa
Castle Caereinion
Welshpool
Powys
SY21 9AF

20/0679/LBC Listed building consent for 
replacement of 6 no. 
windows to southern 
elevation  with timber 
casement windows to 
match existing

Pilleth Court 
Penybont Road
Presteigne
LD7 1NP

20/1003/AGR Extension and alterations 
to the existing forestry 
track

Land Next To Yew Tree 
Cottage
Cascob
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2NT

19/0185/FUL Renovation of existing 
annex/garage to include 
change of use to short-
term holiday let and 
residential annex

Woodwinds
Discoed
Presteigne
Powys
LD8 2NW

Whitton 
Community

Approve 06/05/2020 Listed Building 
Consent

23/07/2020

Prior 
Approval 
Approved

30/06/2020 Agricultural 
Notification

28/07/2020

Refused 18/02/2019 Full Application 06/08/2020

Approve 26/05/2020 Discharge of 
Condition

21/07/2020

Consent 16/06/2020 Full Application 29/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 16 of 17

T
udalen 86



Delegated List 

89 Applications

19/1587/DIS Application to discharge 
conditions 3, 7 and 8 of 
planning approval 
19/0907/HH

Siloam Shalom
Aberyscir
Brecon
Powys
LD3 9NW

19/1590/OUT Outline application for the 
proposed detached utility 
building to service existing 
campsite (for provision of 
office/reception, secure 
storage of grounds 
maintenance machinery,  
maintenance equipment,  
indoor games room, WC, 
Laundry and kitchen

Land Adjoining 68 Degrees 
West Glamping Site
Cradoc
Brecon
Powys
LD3 9LP

20/0047/FUL Extension to existing 
Solar Farm (inclusive of 
PV installation and 
associated infrastructure)

Solar Farm At Bryn Henllys
Cwm-twrch Uchaf
Abertawe
Powys

20/0801/HH Demolition of existing 
shed and erection of 
replacement shed

15 Tanywaun
Pen-rhos
Ystradgynlais
Powys
SA9 1QY

Applicati 89

Ystradgynlais 
Community

Approve 07/01/2020 Full Application 28/07/2020

Approve 11/06/2020 Householder 29/07/2020

Yscir 
Community

Approve 30/09/2019 Discharge of 
Condition

21/07/2020

Approve 24/10/2019 Outline planning 30/07/2020

CODE: IDOX.PL.REP.05 
11/08/2020 10:15:33 POWYSCC\\sandraf 
Go Back Page 17 of 17

T
udalen 87



M
ae'r dudalen hon w

edi'i gadael yn w
ag yn fw

riadol



Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee Friday, 26 June 2020 
 

 

CAN MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE TAXI LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE HELD 
AT BY TEAMS ON FRIDAY, 26 JUNE 2020 

 
PRESENT 
County Councillor H Lewis (Chair) 
 
County Councillors K S Silk and R Williams 
 

Apologies for absence were received from County Councillors J Williams 
(Councillor Silk took part in his place). 

 

1.  RESOLUTION TO EXCLUDE THE PUBLIC AND THE PRESS  

 
RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 100(a)(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public and press were excluded from the meeting 
on the grounds that there would be disclosure to them of exempt 
information under Paragraphs 12 and 18 of Schedule 12a Part 7 of the 
above Act in respect of the following item[s]. 

 

2.  APPLICATION FOR A JOINT HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE 
DRIVER'S LICENCE  

 
2.1. Sub-Committee procedures  

 
The Chair introduced the Sub-Committee and its Clerk. 
 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee on behalf of the Solicitor to the Council 
explained the procedures to be followed by the Sub-Committee. 
 
2.2. Application for a licence  

 
Applicant – JD/01/2020 
 
Potential employer attended via mobile link. 
 
The Licensing Officer presented the licensing authority’s position as outlined in 
the report [copy filed with the signed minutes].   
 
The potential employer spoke in support of the applicant.  The Sub-Committee 
noted their comments and the information provided by the applicant. 
 
All parties confirmed that they had been able to make their representations. 
 
The potential employer and licensing officer left the meeting.  The Sub-
Committee considered, in private, the application and the evidence they had 
heard, with the support of the Clerk.  In reaching the decision members took into 
account the relevant written and verbal representations.   
 

RESOLVED Reason for decision 

To grant JD/01/2020 a joint 
Hackney Carriage and Private Hire 
Driver’s Licence. 

JD/01/2020 was a fit and proper 
person to hold the licence. 

Tudalen 89

6



Taxi Licensing Sub-Committee Friday, 26 June 2020 
 

 

 
 
The Clerk to the Sub-Committee advised that he would confirm the decision with 
the licensing officer, so that he could advise the applicant and in writing to the 
applicant.  
 
The Chair thanked all for attending. 

 
 

County Councillor H Lewis (Chair) 

Tudalen 90


	Agenda
	2 Cofnodion y cyfarfod blaeorol
	4 Ceisiadau cynllunio i'w hystyried gan y Pwyllgor.
	4.2 19/1475/FUL Tyn Yr Wtra, Llanwyddelan, Felinnewydd, Y Drenewydd, Powys SY16 3BT
	19.1475.FUL plan

	4.3 20/0720/FUL Plot wrth ymyl Gerallt, Rhos Y Brithdir, Llanfyllin SY22 5HD
	20.0720.FUL plan

	5 Penderfyniadau'r Pennaeth Eiddo, Cynllunio a Gwarchod y Cyhoedd ar Geisiadau Dirprwyedig
	6 Cofnodion Is-Bwyllgorau Trwyddedau Tacsis

